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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss attributable to owners of Mei Ah Entertainment Group
Limited (the “Company”) for the year is HK$23,896,000 (2013:
HK$48,735,000) and the directors do not recommend the
payment of a dividend (2013: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the Group
recorded a consolidated turnover of HK$144,817,000 (2013:
HK$555,777,000) and a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$23,896,000 (2013: HK$48,735,000). The
loss excluding the gains/losses attributable to investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
and available-for-sale financial assets, was HK$21,326,000
(2013: HK$85,801,000).

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s film exhibition
and film rights licensing and sublicensing segment was
decreased from HK$460 million to HK$73 million, which was
mainly attributable to lesser number of new titles released
during the year, in particular “Silent War”, “Wu Dang” and
“Love in the Buff” contributed significant theatrical revenues
to the Group last year. Due to the decrease in provision for
impairment of certain titles made in the same period last year,
the segment loss was dropped from HK$43 million last year to

HK$1 million this year.

The Group will continue to strengthen its film library through
acquisition, own production and co-production. A number
of new titles are in the pre-production and shooting stages
respectively and they are expected to be released in the

forthcoming year.
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Besides self producing and investing, the Group also makes
use of its wide distribution network developed for years for
its business of film distribution agency. Equipped by the
Group’s film library and through the Group’s experience and
network in program sourcing, the Group is confident that it will
continue to provide high quality and customized programs to

its audiences.

The contribution of revenues from the Group’s television
segment dropped slightly from HK$56 million to HK$51 million,
which was mainly attributable to the termination of a movie

channel with mioTV in Singapore since August 2013.

As at 31st March 2014, the Group provided channels through
various operators, including Red Channel through the platform
of HBO in certain South East Asian territories, HD movie
channel through Chunghwa Telecom MOD platform in Taiwan
and Taiwan Broadband Communications, a movie channel
and a variety channel through the UTV multimedia platform
of China Mobile Hong Kong and a movie channel through the

TVB pay TV platform in Australia.

In November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with
HBO Asia to provide contents of films and drama through
the launch of “RED Channel” in different Asian territories by
stages. This cooperation has enhanced the Group’s exposure
to the global entertainment market and also helped the Group
to establish its channel brandname. The channel has already
been launched in 7 territories including Malaysia, Indonesia,
Thailand, Philippines, Vietnam, Myanmar and Cambodia. The
Group will keep on seeking the opportunity to launch in other

Asian territories including Singapore very soon.

The other channels have also provided steadily increasing
contributions to the Group. The Group has also concluded
to provide a movie channel through the platform of a pay TV

operator in Hong Kong commencing July 2014.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

Looking forward, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities to develop channels with other operators and

other media platforms.

Following the development of its economic environment,
China’s film exhibition industry has grown rapidly in the
recent years. According to statistics published by the
State Administration of Press, Publication, Radio, Film and
Television of the People’s Republic of China, the China
theatrical box office income has grown continuously from
approximately RMB4.3 billion in 2008 to approximately RMB17
billion in 2012, and further increased by approximately 30% to
approximately RMB22 billion in 2013. With reference to certain
statistics as reported and projected by certain market media
articles, the China theatrical box office income is expected
by the industry to reach the level of approximately RMB30
billion in 2014. Taking into account of the increasing demand
but limited theatre supply in China, the Group has started to
penetrate into the China theatrical market and established its
first theatre in Tianjin in 2011. During the year, the Group’s
another theatre in Jiading, Shanghai has also commenced
operations. The Group’s theatres are all digital with most of

them are 3-D equipped.

The theatre in Tianjin has 7 screens consisting approximately
1,200 seats, during the year, this theatre contributed
approximately revenues of approximately HK$9 million (2013:
HK$8 million) to the Group. The one located in Jiading,
Shanghai has 10 screens with approximately 1,600 seats and
contributed revenues of approximately HK$4 million (2013: Nil)

during the year.

Although the Group’s theatre operations are still in its
investment stage, the Group is confident of its prospects
taking into account the continuous growth of China film

exhibition industry.
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The revenue attributable to sale and distribution of films
and programs in audio and visual product format dropped
to the level of approximately HK$5 million (2013: HK$17
million). Following the shrinkage of video industry and rapid
development of technology, the distribution of films and
programs is no longer limited to video discs but in digital
formats available over the Internet. The Group is diversifying
its distribution network to online downloading and streaming

in order to adapt to the expected future consumer behavior.

The Group has launched its video website “www.116.tv”
and its video apps “116”, which include contents of films,
drama and entertainment news, since last year and June
2014 respectively. Taking into account that the operation
is still in investment stage, the segment attributed loss of
approximately HK$9 million (2013: HK$25 million) for the year.
Despite this, the Group considers the new media investment
will ignite a revolution to the video distribution industry and fit

the expected market demand.

The Group’s artiste management business contributed
approximately HK$2 million (2013: HK$14 million) revenues to
the Group, due to less number of artiste performance during
the year. The Group will continue to seek other potential
artistes and performers in order to build up a talent pool from

which all future productions will be benefited.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

The Group’s channel management operations are conducted
through its associated company, namely Hongkongmovie.
com Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“HKM”). Other
than providing services to the Group, HKM also provides
playout, post-production, HD-film restoration and channel
management services to a number of other media operators.
During the year, HKM started to provide its services under the
developed M-OTT platform which enables audiences to watch
content through TV, PC, smart phone, tablet, smart TV and
set-top box. HKM is also co-operating with other institutions
to develop more advanced technology in multimedia area,
e.g. content distribution network, which is ready to contribute

favorable returns to HKM and the Group.

During the year, following the changes in the investment
market conditions, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss turned around to record a fair value
gain of approximately HK$4.3 million (2013: loss of HK$7.6
million). The investment properties portfolio of the Group
contributed a deficit on revaluation of approximately HK$7.5
million (2013: gain of HK$42 million) during the year. Such
gains/losses have no significant effect on the Group’s cash

flow.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 28th April
2014, subsequent to the year end date, the Company has
entered into a non-binding memorandum of understanding
(“MOU”) to establish an investment fund principally investing in
films, drama and other equity investments. The establishment
is still in progress and the Group considers that the co-

operation will further enhance its exposure in the industry.

In respect of the litigation as set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 15th April 2011, after taking advice from
the legal advisors which have considered the information
so far available, the plaintiff’s claim is rather flimsy and the

chance resulting in unfavourable outcome is not high.

Looking forward, the Group will explore other opportunities to
generate greatest returns for its shareholders and reward their

long-term support.
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Liquidity and financial resources

At 31st March 2014, the Group has available banking facilities
of approximately HK$80 million, of which approximately
HK$32 million were utilised. Certain of the Group’s deposits,
financial assets and properties with aggregate net book values
of HK$123 million were pledged to banks to secure banking
facilities. The Group’s gearing ratio of 5.9% as at 31st March
2014 was based on the total of bank loans and overdrafts
of HK$32,182,000 (of which HK$20,235,000, HK$1,486,000,
HK$4,304,000 and HK$6,157,000 are repayable within one
year, in the second year, in the third to fifth year and after
the fifth year respectively) and the shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$549,771,000. The Group’s borrowings and
bank balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi and has no significant exposure to foreign

currency fluctuations.

At 31st March 2014, the Company had contingent liabilities
in respect of guarantees given to banks for facilities of its
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$51 million and
commitments in respect of film production, film and program
licensing agreements amounting to approximately HK$59
million. The commitments will be financed by the Group’s

internal resources and banking facilities.

Employees

At 31st March 2014, the Group employed 150 staff.
Remuneration is reviewed periodically based on individual
staff’s performance. In addition to the basic salaries, staff
benefits include discretionary bonus, medical insurance
scheme and contributory provident fund. The Group also has
a share option scheme whereby qualified employees may be

granted options to acquire shares of the Company.
On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June 2014
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EERSEEEAEZ™IN

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, aged 55, is the founder, Chairman and
a major shareholder of the Group which was established
in 1984, and a recognised leader of the Hong Kong
entertainment industry. With years of experience in the home
video and media entertainment industry, he is responsible for
the corporate strategy and development of the Group. He is
the Vice Chairman of the Federation of Motion Film Producers
of Hong Kong Limited since 1998. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is the father of Mr. Li Tang Yuk, an executive

director of the Company.

Mr. Tong Hing Chi, aged 59, is the Managing Director of
the Group, responsible for the Group’s overall general and
financial administration. He has also been involved in the
Group’s corporate strategy and development since he joined
the Group in 1992. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of experience in the entertainment and multimedia
industry in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Tong has been
the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Motion Picture Industry
Association Limited (“MPIA”) since 2001.

Mr. Li Tang Yuk, aged 29, joined the Group in 2008 and
appointed as an executive director of the Company in May
2014. He is mainly responsible for the business development
of the new media sector of the Group and its principal
associated company. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) from Chu Hai College of Higher
Education. He is the eldest son of Mr Li Kuo Hsing, the

Chairman of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

Non-executive directors

Mr. Hugo Shong, aged 58, was appointed as the non-
executive director of the Company in February 2007 and is the
Executive Vice President of International Data Group (“IDG”)
— the world’s leading IT media, research and exposition
company, a partner of IDG Capital Partners, and the President
of IDG-Asia, which has headed IDG’s operations in information
technology (“IT”) publishing, market research and tradeshows
in the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Shong is now the trustee of
Boston University. Mr. Shong is also a non-executive director
of China Jiuhao Health Industry Corporation Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and
a non-executive director of WPP plc, which is listed on the

London Stock Exchange.

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford, aged 67, has been appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
18th October 2011 and is a corporate executive with a
distinguished career in the fields of media, technology and
finance. He served as Executive Vice-President of MGM
Inc., and as Senior Vice-President at Paramount Pictures
Corporation. He was later the CEO of Seattle-based NVST Inc,
a private equity research firm. His business experience in Asia
dates back to 1989 when he first managed Paramount’s role in
the consortium which won the government-sponsored bidding
for Hong Kong’s cable tv franchise. He became a partner in
Hong Kong based Stone Drum Capital in 2005, and since that
time has played a key role in the development and continues
to serve as the Chief Operating Officer and a member of its
Board of Directors of eChinaCash Inc., a Beijing-based card
services company which is partnered with SinoPec Group in
China. Over the past decade, he has also provided consulting
and strategic advisory services to a number of international

corporations.
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Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Lee G. Lam, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st February
2007. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Mathematics
and Sciences, a Master of Science in Systems Science, and
a Master of Business Administration Degree, all from the
University of Ottawa in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in
Public Administration from Carleton University in Canada, a
Post-graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong Law and
a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from Manchester Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom, a PCLL in law from the
City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in Professional
Accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
SCS, a LLM in law from the University of Wolverhampton in
the United Kingdom, a Master of Public Administration and
a Doctor of Philosophy Degree from The University of Hong

Kong.

Dr. Lam has over 30 years of multinational general
management, management consulting, corporate governance,
investment banking, direct investment and investment fund
management experience, and also serves on the board of
several publicly-listed companies and investment funds in
the Asia Pacific region. Having served as a Part-time Member
of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms and the
Legal Aid Services Council, Dr. Lam is a Member of the
Jilin Province Committee (and formerly a Specially-invited
Member of the Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Vice Chairman of
Liaoning Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a Member
of the New Business Committee of the Financial Services
Development Council (FSDC), a Member of the Derivatives
Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (HKEx), a Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers, a Member of the World Presidents’ Organization,
a Member of the Chief Executives Organization, a Fellow

of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong
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Institute of Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of the
Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR), a Member
of the General Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies,
a Board Member of the Australian Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong and Macau, a Founding Board Member and the
Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong — Vietham Chamber of
Commerce, a founding Member of the Hong Kong — Korea
Business Council, a Vice President of the Hong Kong Real
Property Federation, and Chairman of Monte Jade Science

and Technology Association of Hong Kong.

During the year, Dr. Lam was appointed as a non-executive
director of Coalbank Limited, a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange with effect from 22nd
November 2013 and resigned as a non-executive director of
China Communication Telecom Services Company Limited
with effect from 5th March 2014.

Ms. Wang Huarong, aged 50, has over 20 years of experience,
including management experience, in information technology and
financial service industry and was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in October 2004. She had
been a General Manager of Sparkice (Hong Kong) Ltd. which is a
leading e-commerce company focusing on international trade of
China market, a Senior Software Engineer at DSP Development
Corporation in Boston, and worked at Fixed Income Technology
Group of Goldman Sachs International. Ms. Wang received her
Bachelor of Science degree in computer science from Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, and a Master of
Science degree in Information Systems from North-Eastern
University in the USA.
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EENSEEEBABZEN

Mr. Cheung Ming Man, aged 57, has extensive experience
in the sector of performance and cultural and was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 2004. Mr. CHEUNG has also participated in a
number of community associations, including the Hong Kong
Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’ Association (Vice Chairman);
The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Election
Committee (First, Second and Third Election Committee
Member); Deputy of the National People’s Congress of PRC
Election Committee (Ninth and Tenth Election Committee
Member) and was awarded Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2010. Mr.
Cheung was elected as the Hong Kong deputy to the 12th
National People’s Congress in December 2012.

Mr. Guo Yan Jun, aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in February 2013 has
extensive entrepreneurship experiences and experience of
corporate operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated
from China People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984.
Mr. Guo is presently an independent non-executive director of
Strong Petrochemical Holdings Limited and Honghua Group
Limited (companies listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also
the Chairman of Beijing Junxinda Economic Development Co.
Ltd, and CNHK Media Limited.
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Senior management

Mr. Zhuo Wu, aged 58, is the President of the Group’s China
division, Mr. Zhuo joined the Group in 2007 and is responsible
for the Group’s overall operation in China. Mr. Zhuo has over
35 years of experience in the film industry. Prior to joining the
Group, he had been the chief executive officer of BIG Media
Group Limited (presently known as Neo Telemedia Limited),
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the
Vice President and General Manager of a sizable film studio
company and digital media company in China respectively.

Mr. Chan Lun Ho, aged 44, is the Group’s financial controller
and is responsible for all financial and accounting matters
of the Group. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
20 years of auditing and accounting experience. He joined the
Group in July 2002.

Mr. Long Sao lan, aged 55, is the Program Development
Manager of MATV Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Long is responsible for the development and management
of the Group’s TV operations. Mr. Long has over 30 years
of experience in TV operations. Prior to joining the Group in
December 2000, Mr. LONG worked for Commercial Radio,
Television Broadcasting Ltd, HK Cable TV and Chinese
Entertainment Television.
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Compliance with the code on corporate
governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the code provisions (the “Code”) as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The principles adopted by the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to
shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code for the year ended 31st March 2014,
with the exception of the deviation as mentioned below.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Directors have complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors for
the year ended 31st March 2014.

Board of directors

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of financial statements, which shall give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. Details of the
basis of preparation of the financial statements are set out in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long-term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. The Board also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group. Other decisions are delegated to management.
As at 31st March 2014, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including three executive Directors — Mr. Li Kuo Hsing (the
Chairman), Mr. Tong Hing Chi (the Chief Executive Officer)
and Mr. Chau Kei Leung (resigned on 1st May 2014), two non-
executive Directors — Mr. Hugo Shong and Mr. Alan Cole-
Ford, and four independent non-executive Directors — Dr. Lee
G. Lam, Ms. Wang Huarong, Mr. Cheung Ming Man and Mr.
Guo Yan Jun. On 1st May 2014, Mr. Chan Kei Leung resigned
as an executive director and Mr. Li Tang Yuk was appointed
as an executive director. Biographies of the Directors are set
out on pages 10 to 14.
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There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules and other than Mr. Li Tang Yuk, who was
appointed as executive director of the Company on 1st May,
2014, is the eldest son of Mr. Li Kuo Hsing, the Chairman of
the Company, there is no relationship among members of the
Board and the independent non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should
be appointed for specific terms. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive directors of the Company,
however, they are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with Bye-laws of the Company. Accordingly the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to deal with the requirement in respect of the appointment
terms of non-executive directors as required under the code
provision.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of the irrespective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines.

During the year, the Board held four board meetings and one
general meeting. The attendance of the directors are set out
below:

Mr. Li Kuo Hsing TEESSE
Mr. Tong Hing Chi BEREE
Mr. Chau Kei Leung BAEREE
Mr. Hugo Shong REIES LA

Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Dr. Lee G. Lam MREBT
Ms. Wang Huarong ITEFLL
Mr. Cheung Ming Man REAGEE
Mr. Guo Yan Jun BRELE

Note

(a) The directors were unable to attend the general meeting
due to their respective engagements.

Alan Cole-Ford %t 4%
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Board of directors (Continued)

During the year, all directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operations. The
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial
to the Group in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses and self-
studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Chairman and the chief executive officer
Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer are separate and are not performed
by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
overseeing the function of the Board and formulating overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the senior management, is responsible
for managing the Group’s businesses and responsibilities,
implementing major strategies, making day-to-day decisions
and coordinating overall business operations.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s financial
statements and accounts, and annual and interim
report; (b) to discuss and review with the auditors of
the Company on the scope and findings of the audit
and the external auditor’s management letter; and (c)
to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices, financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive directors
of the Company, namely Dr. Lee G. Lam, Ms. Wang
Huarong and Mr. Cheung Ming Man. The chairman of the
committee is Dr. Lee G. Lam.
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(1)

()

Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee held two meetings with the
Company’s auditor during the year. All of the members
attended the meetings.

The Group’s unaudited interim results, annual audited
results and the system of internal control during the year
ended 31st March 2014 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, which is of opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee according to the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules with written terms of reference. lIts
primary duties are to (a) make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of directors and senior management and
the remuneration of non-executive director; (b) establish
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy; (c) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management.

The remuneration committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Dr. Lee G. Lam, Ms. Wang Huarong and Mr.
Cheung Ming Man. The chairman of the committee is Dr.
Lee G. Lam.

During the year, the remuneration committee met once to
discuss remuneration related matters. All of the members
attended the meetings. During the meetings, the
performance and remuneration of the executive directors
were assessed and the policy for which was discussed
and approved.
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Board Committees (Continued)

3

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
according to the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules
with written terms of reference. Its primary duties are
to:—(a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (c)
access the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee consists of five members,
including three independent non-executive directors of
the Company, namely Mr. Cheung Ming Man, Dr. Lee G.
Lam and Ms. Wang Huarong, and two executive directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Li Kuo Hsing and Mr. Tong
Hing Chi. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Cheung
Ming Man. The nomination committee determined the
policy for the nomination of directors and the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to
select and recommend candidates for directorship during
the year.

During the year, the nomination committee met once and
all of the members attended the meeting.

Under the Company’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members, the nomination committee reviews and
assesses Board composition on behalf of the Board
and recommends the appointment of new director when

necessary.
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Board Committees (Continued)

(8) Nomination Committee (Continued)
In designing the Board’s composition, the nomination
committee has considered a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The nomination
committee will also consider factors based on the
Company’s business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the
Board.

Auditor’s remuneration

The statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 39 to 41. Amounts of approximately
HK$1,620,000 and HK$122,000 were charged to the Group’s
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st March
2014 in respect of the audit service and a tax advisory service

provided by the auditor of the Company respectively.

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Group and making recommendations to the Board; reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of
the Company. During the year, the policy for the corporate

governance of the Group was received and determined.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management of
the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial
and risk controls for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records;
and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood

of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its

subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair

disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its

performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions from

shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors

are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders may be put

through the following channels:

1. by mail to the Company’s head office at 5/F, Mei Ah
Centre, 28 Chun Choi Street, Tsueng Kwan O Industrial
Estate, Kowloon;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2751 3388;

3. by fax at fax number (852) 2799 3643; or

4. by email at webmaster@meiah.com.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
members holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
in aggregate not less than one-tenth of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. Such
requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the office.
If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them may convene the special general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may

be convened by the Directors.

If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting not being the person to be proposed, wishes to
propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a Director
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) shall give his intention to propose the Candidate
for election as a Director; (ii) must include the personal
information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (iii)
must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including the
information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness to
be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The minimum length of the period, during which the Notice
are given, shall be at least 7 days and that (if the Notice
is submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of the Notice shall commence on the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general

meeting.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2014.

Principal activities and analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 42.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 47 to 48 and note
28(b) to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Principal investment properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of those principal investment properties
are set out on pages 187 to 188.

Share capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Distributable reserves

At 31st March 2014, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$223,587,000, comprising contributed
surplus of HK$235,020,000 less accumulated losses of
HK$11,433,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
186.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the

year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the

year.
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Share option scheme

A share option scheme of the Company was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 30th August 2004 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
principal terms are set out as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best quality personnel for the development
of the Group’s businesses; and to provide additional
incentives to employees, consultants, agents, advisers,
customers, suppliers, business and joint venture partners
of the Company, its subsidiaries and its associated
companies.

(b) Participants

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), the board of directors (the “Board”)
may offer to grant share options (the “Options”) to
any director and employee, consultant, agent, advisor,
customer, supplier, business and joint venture partner
of the Company, its subsidiaries and its associated
companies (“Qualifying Grantee”) as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select. Provided the Board so agrees,
such offer may be accepted by a related trust of the
relevant Qualifying Grantee.

(c) Administration
The Share Option Scheme shall be subject to the
administration of the Board. The Board’s administrative
powers include the authority, in its discretion:

(i)  to select Qualifying Grantees to whom Options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme;

(i) to determine, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules and the law, and the time of the grant
of Options;
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(c) Administration (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

to determine the number of Shares to be covered
by each Option granted under the Share Option
Scheme;

to approve forms of option agreements;

to determine the terms and conditions of any
Option. Such terms and conditions may include:

° the exercise price;

o the period within which the Shares must be
taken up under the Option, which must not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant;

° the minimum period, if any, for which an
Option must be held before it can vest (the
Share Option Scheme itself does not specify
any minimum holding period);

o the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved before the Option can be exercised
(the Share Option Scheme itself does not
specify any performance targets);

° the amount, if any, payable on application or
acceptance of the Option and the period within
which payments or calls must or may be made
or loans for such purposes must be repaid;

to construe and interpret the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and Options granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme;

to prescribe, amend and rescind rules and
regulations relating to the Share Option Scheme;
and

ESERE

ARt (=)
(c) FREEBEE(Z)

(iif)

(iv)

(vii)

RERBBERESERE 2Z0B
RIEFS R ZBDEE

HEBRERZE 2N

RTE AT IR AR B ARSF © 3%
SRARARF T RERLE

o TEE:

o REBBEREAEZEMARDZH
IR ZERTESBBERESH
HEAERT 104 ;

e BEBRERBRAZREZRE
BRR (A ) (B R EST B A
B ER MR EEE
FR) 5

e BRERTENAENZX
BRZ(WR) (BRETER
BUERBERNREER)

e HFENEMBRENAIM
ZEBE(WE) RLAY TR
NRREHIRLEMEFE
BEERZHR

mEREEBRESTERBLESN

Z BB IR Z RN

A1 EA ~ IER] R EERREB R RERT B1 B RS
ZHRARBEE S K

27



28

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 25 fR £ &5 31 &£ B 5 [ 2 7]

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Share option scheme (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Administration (Continued)

(viii) subject to the provisions relating to grant to
substantial share holders and independent non-
executive directors and their respective associates
in the Share Option Scheme, to vary the terms and
conditions of any option agreement (provided that
such variation is not inconsistent with the terms of
the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme).

Life of the Share Option Scheme and grant of Options
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of adoption. On and
subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Board shall
be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption to make an offer for the grant of an
Option to any Qualifying Grantee as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance of Option
offer

An offer of the grant of any Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Qualifying Grantee concerned and,
provided the Board so agrees, by a related trust of the
named Qualifying Grantee for a period of 28 days from
the date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board
may specify in writing).

HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offer.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of the
relevant Option but the subscription price shall not be
less than whichever is the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

e ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

ARt (=)

(c)

(d)

(e)

f)

TREEEHE(A)

(viiiy EEREFEIERARTEERRE -
BYFHTESRHESEZHE
ATEREZRET  BREME
PR FE 15 5 2 IR TR R AR A (M 5% IE 18
BABEEHRAIRBRESSZ
RFERRFF) o

R B 4 AT B SF R e 458 L PR B 4
BREFTHERAENRITI0FAE
Mo RBBRETE 2RFR EHARA
ZREXEREZRRT - EB2HE
RERA B BB 10F R - BER @A
EEHESS2RNBREZSERER
ARBBEBERHBREZEY -

ERNREEENRZTREA

REEMBREZZNHERLN A BB
28H(HESEUHUEAEEZRR
HE)ATHERSERARA(KES
EEET  IRAHSERARAZE
BAERT)EEM -

ABEANEMRBEREZYHEAOAATX
11+1.008 T °

REE
FABEBREZABEARESSERN
BHERBRERNEZENEEE A
B HEZRBETEERTISES
ZBEE ()RR BBz BR
RFFFIZROBWHE ; (i) RBEEREH
Hp A EE XAz BHRMIZ
AP FHWTHE ;K (i) RD ZEE °



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %%}  MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED (R IR B EBM AR A T

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Share option scheme (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Option period

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an Option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant Option.

Maximum number of shares available under the Share

Option Scheme

(i)  Overriding Limit
The limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under any schemes of the Company if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

(ii) Mandate Limit

In addition to the limit set out in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) above and prior to the approval of a Refreshed
Mandate Limit as referred to in sub-paragraph (h)
(i) below, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (“Initial
Mandate Limit”). Options lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other
schemes will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the 10% limit.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share
Option Scheme (Continued)

(iii) Refreshing of Mandate Limit

(iv)

The Company may by ordinary resolutions of the
shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit provided
the Company shall issue a circular to shareholders
containing such information as required by the
Listing Rules before such approval is sought.
However, the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under all of the schemes of the Company under the
limit as refreshed (“Refreshed Mandate Limit”) must
not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Refreshed Mandate Limit.
Options previously granted under the schemes
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the scheme or exercised options)
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the limit as refreshed.

Grant to specifically identified participants
Specifically identified participants may be granted
Options beyond the Mandate Limit. The Company
may in addition seek separate approval by its
shareholders in general meeting for granting
Options beyond the Mandate Limit provided the
Options in excess of the limit are granted only to
participants specifically identified by the Company
and a circular to shareholders containing such
information as required by the Listing Rules is
issued before such approval is sought. The date
of the board meeting for proposing such further
grant should be taken as the date of grant for such
grants.
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Share option scheme (Continued)
(h) Maximum number of shares available under the Share

Option Scheme (Continued)

(v)

Limit for each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of Options granted (whether
exercised or outstanding) in any 12-month period to
each participant must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue. Where any further grant of Options to a
participant would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted to such person (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
shares in issue, such further grant shall be subject
to separate approval by shareholders in general
meeting with the relevant participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. Prior to seeking
such approval, the Company shall issue a circular
containing to shareholders such information as
required by the Listing Rules. The date of the board
meeting for proposing such further grant should be
taken as the date of grant for such grants.

Following the shareholders’ resolution passed on
30th August 2010, the Mandate Limit was refreshed
to 563,303,452 shares of HK$0.02 each, representing
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of passing the

resolution. As at 31st March 2014, there was no option

granted under the Mandate Limit.

ESERE

ARt (=)
(h) HWEEHBETZESRORE (&)

)

W=

EEHBEZRT
E2HREMEAT-EAAPER
ERzBRE(THRETERER
TE)ETEREITRETERTZ
RIDBE - TEBBERTRNIZ
1% MARE-—TREBRET S
HEMBRZBAIREZE-S
RHUBREZB(BREER)LT=
BAMER  AERHTEERIS
ERERERECTE SEH
RARTEZBRE)MBTRET
BITZRD  SRECBITROB
B1% - BIZE—SREBRER
RERERRASLSTHE M
FRSHEEREBRBATLANRE
RE  MARBEAESRKAEBIE
AIERREBEHEE L HRAMRE
BRENZEBER - EZRE-IRE
BRECESESSHEY  MZAR
RS R ERE R B e

Z-ZEFENA=ZTHBBRR

RABERE BELIBROEEHFZ
563,303,452 % F IR E1E 0.02 & Tt 2 R
7 ERBEBRABRRERZCBITRG
10% - R-—ZE—NF=A=+—H #
ERBRERBERE L ZBRE -

31



32

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED 2 25 fR £ &5 31 &£ B 5 [ 2 7]

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

Directors
The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive directors

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing (Chairman)

Mr. TONG Hing Chi (Managing Director)

Mr. LI Tang Tuk (appointed on 1st May 2014)
Mr. CHAU Kei Leung (resigned on 1st May 2014)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Hugo SHONG
Mr. Alan Cole-Ford

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Lee G. LAM

Ms. WANG Huarong

Mr. CHEUNG Ming Man

Mr. GUO Yan Jun

The directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management

are set out on pages 10 to 15.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests EEREETTRARRELATH
and/or short positions in the shares, EMEREEREZERG - 2R
underlying shares and debentures of the BRIIRBESZEER ke
Company or any associated corporation

At 31st March 2014, the interests and short positions of N-ZZE-—ME=A=+—0 " BEXDQFK

each director and chief executive in the shares, underlying FHHEREE MR ([EHGH 1) 5 XVERSE 352

shares and debentures of the Company and its associated REFEFEZECMAKBERIBE AR A EE

corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures ZBH ZSEERBETHRAEEARARTR

Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be HEBRELIEEIZIFRIzER) 2RH

kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO HEROREEEZREERRENT :

or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the Company (a) WEREEO0.02ETZE LT HiER
% of the
issued share
capital of the
Company as

Number of shares beneficially held at 31st March
— Long position 2014
ESRFACERMBAE — F8 B-E—ME
Personal Family Corporate =ZA=+—H
Name of director interests interests interests HFELFERT
EEls EBAES XEHES EEES BFzasnk
Mr. LI Kuo Hsing 285,737,500 189,843,750 2,305,607,550 49.37%
TEEEE Note (i) Note (ii)
BiaE () B (i)
Mr. TONG Hing Chi 16,875,000 — — 0.30%
BEEREE
Notes: /7/9‘5'}" ;
()  These shares are held by Ms. LI Pik Lin, the spouse of () ZERVEZTEHELEZRBZTZE
Mr. LI Kuo Hsing. BELtiEFR -
(i)  These shares are held by Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited, iy ZERVEZTEHELEEEZZSZ
a company beneficially controlled by Mr. LI Kuo Hsing. ‘AT Kuo Hsing Holdings Limited

B
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation
(Continued)

(b) Interest in subsidiaries of the Company

Mr. LI Kuo Hsing personally holds non-voting deferred
shares of HK$1 each in the following subsidiaries:
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Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

SR RERIE

B z® B

Personal interests

Name =18 BAES
Mei Ah Investment Company Limited EuYERERRAT 500,000
Mei Ah Press Limited EDREFRAA 100,000
Mei Ah Video Production Company Limited EnREEERRATE 10,000

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its
associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold
any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.

Save as aforesaid, at no time during the year, the directors
and chief executives (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.

BREMRESN  REREMEE > A27 - H
MEAR HERMBRARAREEHELE
BETLENZH  EARAATAEEREST
BHABBREREZEBRRBE T \BRZT
LFEARAREEHEEBZRD - HE
RD R EREE 2 EAEERAR -

BREMEIN  RERNEAKE SEBRE
BITBRAB(BREREZEBRAM T N\EZ
FROAUEFEBACAREEBBEBE(GRE
ZHRPlzER)EMERZ  FTEERIITE
AREBRBEEFFROIATREZAQRARA
EBREIEROD(IRAREZTNEER(NE
R)) 2 AEARER -
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and/or FERRERELFZEG RIERR
short positions in the shares, underlying BRipZEER Rk
shares of the Company
The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept RIBIRESIEBEXVEREIGIEBARE 2
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31st FERRBCMER RZZ—NFE=A
March 2014, the Company had been notified of the following =Et+—B > RARFEEBAUTHEERATE
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being BITRAS% UL 2T ERFEBZRAE
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These ZERGRALINEERBEEERESITH
interests are in addition of those disclosed above in respect of AEBEUINZHESR o

the directors and chief executives.

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.02 each in the Company BSREEO0.2ETZFATIERER
Number of shares — Long position
Ein#A — 8

% of the issued
share capital of

the Company as

Corporate at 31st March

Note interests 2014

R-ZE—QHEF

=A=+—H

EELFERT

Brat EEES BFEZzESL

Ho Chi Sing (a) 398,840,000 7.08%

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Associates L.P. (b) 370,205,516 6.57%

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP Associates Ltd. (b) 370,205,516 6.57%

Zhou Quan F#& (b) 370,205,516 6.57%

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund L.P. 307,385,666 5.46%
Notes: /]/:7‘5_? ;

(@ Included the 370,205,516 shares as set out in note (b). (a) ‘BIEMIEE(b) FTE2 370,205,516 B 1D ©

(b) Referred to the same parcel of shares and included the (b) 1ERE — A1 K B FEIDG-Accel China

307,385,666 shares held by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund Growth Fund L.P.3#%5 307,385,666 %

L.P. BAD o
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Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are

as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 22%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 56%
Sales

— the largest customer 14%
— five largest customers in aggregate 46%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

Connected transactions

The following transactions between a connected party (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and the Group
have been entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant
circular and/or announcements, if necessary, had been made
by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to the agreements entered into between the Group
and Beijing Mei Ah Hua Tin Xia Film Distribution Company
Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou Mei Ah Hua Tin
Xia Film Distribution Company Limited (“Hua Tin Xia”)), a
connected person to the Company, on 18th August 2011
and 18th January 2012, the Group appointed Hua Tin Xia
as its sole distribution agent in the PRC in respect of the
Group’s films in the PRC up to 31st March 2014. Details of the
transactions are set out in the circular of the Company dated
10th February 2012.

e ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§

TEaH
ARDFRE NI T I RAFEEAERELD
2 HBREAEABBER 2 EERTEA
Mo

FTEHEBRER
REES T EHERRES B2 EER
BRSEEE LT

BEE
— BEARHER 22%
— ERHEBE 56%
HEm
- BAREF 14%
— EREFEF 46%

BEE WEZHBATREABRESEHRA
BEADRARES% U L2 RREBHEEZE
FEHEERES 2 # -

MEX %
AAABEAL(EER EHHRA) EAEE
MU TRBERT LR, HEFTH AR
AERUEBERRIELTRAE14AET
BEMBAR A%

REAEEHEANR CBEEA LTI REDRE
ATEXBRITERLAT(GIBEMERERT
EXBITERARTERT DT L ZHE
RZE——FNB+N\BRZZE—Z-%—A8
+TNB AEEZREXTAEBEZ_-Z
—ME=F=+—HALEPEABTEAEEES
ERBRBEIRE ZEXFZHBREAR
RER=ZE——F-A+HHEZBR -
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Connected transactions (Continued)

Annual caps of HK$18,600,000, HK$21,500,000 and
HK$28,400,000 in respect of the distribution agency fee
payable to Hua Tin Xia for the years ended 31st March 2012,
2013 and 2014 respectively were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the special general meeting
held on 27th February 2012.

During the year ended 31st March 2014, distribution agency
fee paid/payable to Hua Tin Xia amounted to approximately
HK$455,000.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by independent non-executive directors of the
Company. The independent non-executive directors confirmed
that the aforesaid connected transactions were entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties;

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with
paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

ESERE

RERS#)
BBRE-—E-——-—H . —B-=ZHKR-F-—
FZR=1+-—HLFEEAFFERT 28T
REEBMm S BIREZFE LB 18,600,000 %
Jt ~ 21,500,000 & T &% 28,400,000 3% T 2 B
—TE-—FE-A-+tHETZRRERERA
S LEARDNTBEILIRERAE ©

REBEEZE-Z-—NE=A=+—HLEE B
i/ BAFEXT 2BTREEQNA 455,000
BT ©

ARBZBIFPTESCERH LMFERS
BRG  BUFPTESCERILABER
275

72

(@ RAKEBZEER-—BREBBEFF]

K

(b) E-—REXRRAIZEAREMNS TH
MBI E =T FEeB R RRM 2 RKF

i

) MRBEEZSEXRZ MBS BRAF
SEANAARRARR ZBERE 2K

T -

ARRABRBMEERE  RESBEHHL
G M 2 (BB EE E K ER ) 30005 E
LU BERELRFHUIN 2ERTER (X2
RCEBHA)E7405R &R LM R AR EN
FEBEXZNREMRS | RARE 25
BHEEXZFLRE  -ZBMCRELTR
BIZE 14A.38 R H LA KB TR ER 2 588
ERXSGBHARHBRARER 2 ERER
BR 1 o
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Connected transactions (Continued)

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31st March 2014 is set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. These
transactions do not constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, it is confirmed that there is sufficient public float of
at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares at the date of
this report.

Corporate Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on
pages 16 to 23.

Directors’ interests in competing business
None of the directors, management or shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) has an interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Li Kuo Hsing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June 2014

e ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_a

pwc

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT
GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to
185, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31st March 2014, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

B XA R

B ZHEERE
BRTEMERAKREARLFBE

(RERZFMAE LI BER 2L A])

R (A TEBRMD S EAINERE
A2F 1B EETIREEANEBERAT(UT
ERIEARDREMBAR (KB E5E])
MRS BHRE  BAEVHBREREEN=
E-NE=ZA=+-BWNEENQATEER
BREHZZALFENGERER K&
2HARER SREEZEHRREEELSR
BR URTESHBRBERAMHBRES

EFNGSMERRARENRE

BRRESAAERBEREHMOSEM
B BB B R R A R BB D BMR A BV IR
BERERARGEMBHRR  USHESUER
RIFHEBEMAFHRBR  REBHIRE
BEREUBRRALENRFIZS - UELHE
BUMBBRERAFEARKFRERMERN
B ORHEERIRAL o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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B HEHRE

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

e ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3§
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31st March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th June 2014

B XA R

R

BMRAA ZEGREUBBRREREETSE
HBREEAEEMAFRER H2DQF
k BEXEER-ZE-NEF=A=+—HWE
BRR k BEXEE8ZEZALFENEE
RBEERE  LEERBEB(D RGO
BRELZARR -

BERKEFEMEHR
BIEE A

58 “E-—NESBZ+tH
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A 34
,%/T (=] l'l&ﬁﬁ
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLEE
2014 2013
—Z—|mE —F—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE FET FET
Revenue &= 5 144,817 555,777
Cost of sales SHE AN 7 (82,634) (486,487)
Gross profit £7 62,183 69,290
Other income HAbug A 5 13,821 17,174
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (&18) s — T4 6 (2,570) 37,066
Selling, distribution and HE BOKTSHEERS
marketing expenses 7 (9,616) (85,416)
Administrative expenses THRX 7 (87,629) (83,648)
Operating loss BEBR (23,811) (45,534)
Finance income B FEUR A 8 817 696
Finance costs il B AR 8 (891) (751)
Finance costs — net BERA — FHE (74) (59)
Share of losses of associates PR B N B R 18 (401) (598)
Loss before income tax FrFriiRaIEE (24,286) (46,187)
Income tax expense FrEBix 9 (879) (2,889)
Loss for the year FAER (25,165) (49,076)
Loss attributable to: FE(EESIR -
Owners of the Company ININETE XN (23,896) (48,735)
Non-controlling interests B ER (1,269) (341)
(25,165) (49,076)
HK cents HK cents
y-7/] B
Loss per share attributable to owners EXTFHEE ABEERNERK
of the Company during the year BEiR
Basic loss per share ERERERE 11 (0.42) (0.87)
Diluted loss per share ER#EEER 11 (0.42) (0.87)
The notes on pages 51 to 185 are an integral part of these ES51E18 B2 ARG ERET 2
consolidated financial statements. B8 SR o
HK cents HK cents
&l Bl
Dividends [i9 8 38 - —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SmezHERER

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss

Surplus on revaluation of buildings

Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of buildings

Fair value losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Release of available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve upon
disposal of available-for-sale financial
assets

Impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets

Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss for the year

The notes on pages 51 to 185 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FABR

Hte2mka (EHR) :
AEEEF TR ZHE

BFEMBHR
BFEMBHREL ZELHRE

AREEMBEEZARE
18

HEA SR EMBEEERRE
AHRHENBEEEGHE
AHEEMBEERERSR

SNEIE R

FRARMEEKE  MKRRE

FRAZEGREH

B2 EEIREN -

RARERA
IR S

FAZEGREN

Note
Biat

14(a)

31

23(a)

23(a)

23(a)

EED -

Year ended 31st March
B8E=A=1T—HLEE

2014 2013
—E—mE —=2—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(25,165) (49,076)
15,122 10,847
(2,457) (1,634)
(6,117) (470)
— (2,506)
107 =
271 267
6,926 6,504
(18,239) (42,572)
(16,976) (42,360)
(1,263) (212)
(18,239) (42,572)

ES1E1BEMERAGEMBHRR 2R
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HeBEEEER

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Leasehold land and land use rights
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment properties
Interests in associates
Interest in a joint venture
Available-for-sale financial assets
Film rights, films in progress and

film royalty deposits

Other receivables and deposits

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from associates
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Shareholders’ funds
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BE

FRENEE

HE L £ it fE R
M - BERRIE

B EE

REM=E

i NP
REERT 2 ESE

AREEMBEE

BYINE  RETEYRE

TR E
Hitb R FE R ZS

TENEE
B 5 Rk HAEWFIE

& Wi Bt 0 B RROR

BARESABRBR 2T

&E
SR PRITER
RekERREER

HRE

s
FAFMAAEGED

LN

IR iaE
(G

RRES
FFIER S

s

Note
BtaE

13
14
15
16
18
19(a)
23(a)

17
25

24
25
18

23(b)
22(b)
26

27
27
28(a)

As at 31st March

®W=B=+—H
2014 2013
—E—QmE 2=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
28,871 29,660
224,411 181,643
201 403
215,994 223,501
1,890 773
3,029 9,146
71,545 46,697
6,270 11,562
552,211 503,385
82 684
16,159 38,022
7,064 12,397
35,833 32,722
23,500 23,500
74,259 100,363
156,897 207,688
709,108 711,073
112,661 112,661
126,733 126,733
310,377 327,353
549,771 566,747
7,493 8,756
557,264 575,503
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HeEEERER

As at 31st March

®=B=+—H
2014 2013
—Z—mF —£-=
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaE FEiT FET
LIABILITIES afR
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Borrowings B8 30 11,947 =
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTEFERs 31 20,751 17,862
32,698 17,862
Current liabilities nEAR
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBENTIE 29 67,196 72,817
Receipts in advance FE Y FRIE 20,254 24,090
Borrowings =N 30 20,235 9,048
Current income tax liabilities BEAFTISHiEE 11,461 11,753
119,146 117,708
Total liabilities HamE 151,844 135,570
Total equity and liabilities HREIRAR 709,108 711,073
Net current assets mBEERE 37,751 89,980
Total assets less current liabilities HBEERRDAR 589,962 593,365
The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 185 FAF1BSEZREMBERRA—FT—NF
were approved by the Board of Directors on 27th June 2014 ANEZTLHEEZESSHE  WREESE -
and were signed on its behalf.
Director Director
EE EE
Li Kuo Hsing Tong Hing Chi
FERE BER#&
The notes on pages 51 to 185 are an integral part of these FES51ZE185HE M AR GREMBRRZE
:::]

consolidated financial statements. BB IhD o
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BALANCE SHEET
BERER

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets

Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

"E
ERENEE
RIEB ARz
TENEE
FETFRIE
RERZERREER

HAE

o
FLFWAAEGEES

PR

BRAD 1B

f#th

wEs

AR

mENA R

H b fE A 7O

HAR

HERRAR

REEERE

HRERTDAR

The financial statements on pages 42 to 185 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 27th June 2014 and were signed

on its behalf.

Director
EE
Li Kuo Hsing

FER

The notes on pages 51 to 185 are an integral part of these

financial statements.

As at 31st March

R=A=+—AH

2014 2013
—EZ—mE —E—-=

Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Mzt FET FET
20 462,784 465,050
337 337
26 13 14
350 351
463,134 465,401
27 112,661 112,661
27 126,733 126,733
28(b) 223,599 225,824
462,993 465,218
29 141 183
141 183
463,134 465,401
209 168
462,993 465,218

FAE1B B2 YERER - —EF
ANEZt+tREESSHE  TREFE -

Director

EE

Tong Hing Chi

EE

EH1E1BECMEARFGREMBHRR 2B

R4 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERnSBR

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTHAARS

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets

Share Buildings revaluation

redemption ~ Contributed Exchange revaluation reserve Retained  Non-controlling

Share capital ~ Share premium reserve surplus difference reseve W ERE earnings interests  Total equity
ks RAER  RAROER BABR EREE BTEGER  REEGER RERH  FEREG #na
HKS 000 HK$ 1000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HK8 000 HKS 000 HK8 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
FAr -2 FAr -2 7A1 -2 74T -2 FA1 -2

Balance at 1st April 2012 —E-ZEWA-R
b4 i} 112,661 126,733 12 189,009 1,889 41,187 10,519 127,097 6,170 615,277
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year FREE = = = - - - - (68,735 (341) (49,076)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) XH2EME /(1) -
Surplus on revaluation of BTE(ER
buidings (note 14(3) (WEmg) - - - = = 10847 = = - 10847
Deforred taxation arisng from BT EREREL
revaluation surplus of i1
buldings (note 31) (Het31) - - - = = (1,634 = = = (1,634
Fair valug losses on avallable-for- T HEEHEE
sale financial assets DEFE
(note 23(3) (H234) - - - - = = (é0) = = (#0)
Release of avaiable-for-sale HETHEENKE
financial assets revaluation ERERTH
resenve upon disposal o LEnKER
avallable-for-sale financia BRE
assets (1ote 233) (Wi235) - - - - - = (2506) = = (2.506)
Curtency translation diferences ~ &#EEE
- Group - 158 - - - - 5 - - - 129 194
— Associates (nofe 16) - Beld
(k1) - - - = 13 = = - - 13
Totalother compretiensive income/  Efr2ElE / ()
foss) g - - . - 13 9213 2978 - 129 6504
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EKE / (EH)EH = = - - 138 9213 (2.976) (48735 219) [#2572)
Transactions with owners HREACRA
Non-controling nterest arisng on - EBAREL 25
business combination g i
(note 36(b) (W 551) - - = = = 110 110
Capital injection from non- FERRRLE
controling interests - = = = = 2,688 2,688
Total transactions with owners ~ ENEALXAEH - - - - - 2,79 2798
Balance at 31st March 2013 R-8-2£28
St-AekR 112,661 i 2007 50,400 754 78,362 8,756 575,503
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAENBBR

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTHA ABS

Available-

for-sale

financial

assets

Share Buildings revaluation

redemption ~ Contributed Exchange revaluation reserve Retained  Non-controlling

Share capital ~ Share premium reserve surplus difference reseve W ERE earnings interests  Total equity
ks RAER  RAROER BABR EREE BTEGER  REEGER RERH  FEREG #na
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK8 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000
FAr -2 FAr -2 7A1 -2 74T -2 FA1 -2

Balance at 1st April 2013 —E-ZEMA-R
CER 112,661 126,733 12 189,009 2,021 50,400 1,543 78,362 8,756 575,503
Comprehensive loss 31 |
Loss for the year FREE = = = - - - - (23,896 (1,269) (25,165
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ¥t2EkE /()
Surplus on revaluation of BTE[ER
buidings (note 14f2) iz = = - - - 15,122 - - - 15,122
Deforred taxation arisng from B EREREL
revaluation surplus of i1
buildings (note 31) (W31 - - - - - (2457) - - - (2457)
Fair valug losses on avallable-for- T EEHEE
sale financial assets (note DEFE
208) (Hi236) - - - - - - 6,117) - - (6,117)
Impairment loss on avallable for AL HERHER
sale financial assets HEEE - - = = = = 107 = - 107
Curtency translation diferences  &#EEE
- Group - 71t§ - - - - 304 - - - 6 310
— Associates (nofe 18] -BEN
(K1) - = = = (%) = = = - (39
Total other comprehensive income/ A 2ENE /(B
(loss) fag - - - - 265 12,665 (6,010) - b 6,926
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2K /(B ) K = - - - 25 12,665 6,010) (23,8%) (1,263) (18,239)
Balance at 31st March 2014 R-Z-BEZR
St-BeEk 112,661 126,733 12 189,009 2,092 63,065 1,538 54,466 749 557,264
The notes on pages 51 to 185 are an integral part of these ES51E1B BT ARREMBRRZE

consolidated financial statements. BB o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mEESRER

Year ended 31st March
BE=HA=1+—HLEE

2014 2013
—E—mE ==
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
BtaE FEiT FET
Cash flows from operating activities ESEHZHEKEE
Cash generated from operations EEMBERES 32(a) 57,069 138,153
Income tax paid EFEH (704) (3,847)
Net cash generated from operating REXEBBRSFR
activities 56,365 134,306
Cash flows from investing activities ®BEEFHZHEKEE
Purchase of property, plant and IBEYE  HERRE
equipment 14 (36,739) (19,905)
Purchase of film rights, films in BESEME - |mEF
progress and film royalty deposits B RETRERS (69,477) (37,451)
Deposit paid for acquisition of land and W+ REFFFiESE
building 25 - (6,136)
Proceeds from disposal of available- HEAHEEMKERE
for-sale financial assets Z B IE 23(a) 791 2,937
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - HEEREEZ
plant and equipment Fri8FRIE 32(a) 15 20
Interest received 2 UF 2 8 817 696
Acquisition of an associate company g3 N 36 - (8,516)
Incorporation of an associate Ay NG| 18 (1,556) (1,299)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAARBFABRRZ
assets at fair value through profit or B EREZBIE
loss 23(b) 1,163 9,083
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTAE ST (104,986) (60,571)
Cash flows from financing activities REEHZHERE
Proceeds from bank loans RITERZMERIE 32(b) 28,550 —
Repayments of bank loans EERTER 32(b) (7,000) (10,458)
Interest paid on loans and overdrafts ENERRELFE 8 (891) (737)
Repayments of capital element of EERERN 2 REIH
finance leases 32(b) — (252)
Interest element of finance leases RIE A 2 F 2 &0 8 - (14)
Capital injection from non-controlling FEREREE
interests — 2,688
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEFTBHME(FARE

financing activities HEE 20,659 (8,773)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AERTRER

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year
Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Cash at bank, on hand and
short-term bank deposits

Bank overdrafts

The notes on pages 51 to 185 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Note
BtaE

BeRERR&TE
(WD), 1BmFH

FHNzRERERREER

=8

FRZUGREFRAARLRE

HeéRERARAEEAZ

BESH
RITRERRSUKRIERH

RITIER 26
RITEX 30

EERD o

Year ended 31st March
8FEF=A=+—HLEE

2014 2013
—Z—mF —2-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FET
(27,962) 64,962
100,315 34,958
13 395
72,366 100,315
74,259 100,363
(1,893) (48)
72,366 100,315

FEH1E1BEZMEARGEN KRR 2B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in television operations, film exhibition, film
rights licensing and sub-licensing, sales and distribution
of films and programs in audio visual product format,
artiste management, theatre operations, property

investment and video online business.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved

for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th June 2014.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise

stated.

e SRR MY R

—REH
iﬁ&*éﬂﬁlﬁmﬂjwm i)
REMBAR (KB AEE ) ETERSE
ERELK ESTHB SEHMERLER
BE USETERFAHERRITZE
EUREE -BABTE HREK UE
RERER KRG IAFIEZETR o

AABIDRBREEFTMHRIZIZBR L
A o HFMPHEE 2 ik A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM

11, Bermuda °

AARARBEBBERSMARAT L

mo

BREBHAN  NEEMBRERUET
(MBr)23 - AESMBHRRELR
EFgRN-E-mEAAZTERALE
T 3% o

EETHBRAE

REAGEVMBERRRAZETEZSHE
RERTX - REEHAN  KEBE
B2 zBFENERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB KM

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of buildings, investment properties, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in

note 4.

2 EEg

2.1

BTRURERE (2

RERE
FEBZGEVBRRERET B
e As(EBETFMLE ]
Bz EBMBHREER(EBH
BHMEED DREER - REPB/E
BRELRAERE - WRBED R
EBEARZET - REWE - ATHiE
EBEERRAAEFABER
ZHBEE 2 EMMELES

BB BYBREER 2B
BERFEREAS THRS G -
ETFEREEEEERAAEESS

HRBREDITERAE - S REE
AN S ERME 2K - S
REAGRE M HRREERRRAN
fhat 2 8008 - R4 PIRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

2 BEESHRREE®

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REREE)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by (a) FXBEIFRZFHTITREEST
the Group E8

The following new and revised standards VAT 35T R &RIE 5T 22 B |2 %2

and amendments to standards which are

mandatory for accounting periods beginning

on 1st April 2013 but do not have a material

impact on the Group:

B2 BT AMAR T —=

FMA-BRAzETHE
B EEAKETEEXR

1= .
7 O

HKAS 1 Financial statements presentation BReRUEIR(STA)  AEAMAANE,

(Amendment) regarding other comprehensive R ERE
income

HKFRSs 10, 11 and  Transition guidance ERORRLERE 0% BEKd
12 (Amendments) FNERER(5TR)

HKAS 19 Employee benefits BReiEE19% EEEA
(Amendment) (i)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements ﬁiﬁé%ﬁ‘J”Z?%ﬁ BuhkER
(revised 2011) (CB--E8§)

HKAS 28 Associates and joint ventures R BeNRRAENT
(revised 2011) (ZE--841)

HKFRS 1 First time adoption on government loans BAUBREEAE % BRERZERE
(Amendment) (BT

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures on BRARRERAZTS HHIR R
(Amendment) asset and liability offsetting (B3%) REfEZER

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements ERUBGEEAEI0E  GANEER

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements E\%ﬁﬂ%fﬁ’&ﬁ‘@ﬂ% aERH

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ERRREAE FENENERY

&
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement EAURREEAZ NS AAEE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20  Stripping Costs in the Production Phase ER(EMEERSHEZE  HRRREERAY
of a Surface Mine g)- REENE S

Annual Annual Improvements 2011 FEYERE “E--EEENE
improvements
project

53
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REREE)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards (b) EFEMIERFLEHEFHE
and interpretations that have been issued B - ERZETTERRE
but were not yet effective
The following new standards, amendments LU 3 2E R ~ 2B ZEFT A
to standards and interpretations have been REREBCHEMENRRZ-ZE
issued but are not effective for the financial —=ZFWA—HHKBZHRK
year beginning 1st April 2013 and have not FEEN TREXREERE
been early adopted by the Group: B4

Effective for

accounting period

beginning
on or after
RLUTHBSZ#
itz et RAR £ 3
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation on 1st January 2014
BB ETTERISE 32 85 (BFT &) asset and liability offsetting —E-mE-A—H
HBIA  BEHEEREEZZ
HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of assets — Recoverable 1st January 2014
BBETERZE 3655 (EFTA) amount disclosures —Z-NFE—HF—H
EERE — TREEHEIKE
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Recognition 1st January 2014
BHBETTERISE 395 (BT &) and Measurement - Novation of —E-NFE-A—H
derivatives
BIBTA: BARE — TETAZER
HKFRS10, HKFRS 12 and Consolidation for investment entities 1st January 2014
HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment) REBRZHE AR —E-NFE-A—H
BRHBHREERE 105 - BEBHBR
FREAE12FREBETERE 275
(Z2——5%) (BT &)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies 1st January 2014
i (ARMBHRERRESS) — HE —E-mE-A—H
RRE215
Amendment to HKAS 19 (revised 2011) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 1st July 2014
BEREFHERE 195 2 BFT AR Contributions —E-mEtA—H

(Z2——FE15) RERMTE - EEHEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e HRERM AT
2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EETHBREE#)
policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REREE)
(b) BEMGERKERZHE
B BRIZETZREBE

but were not yet effective (Continued) (#&)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards

and interpretations that have been issued

Effective for
accounting period
beginning

on or after
RUTHHRZ&
BAta < & T RAR £ 3

Annual improvements 2012

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

1st July 2014

“E-CEFENE “E-ZRECZ-CHFRMCFEIGE “Z-NFEtA—-H
Annual improvements 2013 Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle 1st July 2014
“E--FFEBE TE-—FEIZ-ZHERHRCFERE —E-mFE+LA—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1st January 2016
BERUBHELAE 145 EEERLERF —E-RE-A—H
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1st January 2015
BBUBHEEEIR BB IA —E-HF—-H—H

REEG R LT HEE
FIEER - RBEER ZEET AR
RRBEVNBRMNZEE
A BRI AR ZE - AEH
EEFEEESE  MHERE
RELSER - BITARR
BEOHHALBEXEARMHK
RREBRERZE -

The Group will adopt the above new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards as and when they
become effective. The Group is in the process
of assessing the impact but is not yet in a
position to state whether these would have
a material impact on its results of operations

and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EEEHBREE#)
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation 22 HFAIEHR

2.2.1Subsidiaries 22.1H 8 4 5

56

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from

the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that
are recognised in assets are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

MEBAREASEHAES
EHECER(BREEABRE
g  EAEEEZRZERE
MAEAZEBzARIE
BHERN  TRELEBHY
ZERZEIREZSER
B ASEEEHZER -
MEBLAREEFHEERER
EEZBHEBGEEAR  HE
DRAEZEFEL LB
FILZRE AR ©

SERARABZRE X5
ZEES - WaE kAT UYH
H-BAREEZLABXR
ZEEZEZT TUHE-
MEBARZETHREERE
EEHER - UBRELRE
BERMNBREBM—3 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s

identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed

as incurred.

2 EEgHRFREE S
2.2 HAaEH#E)
22.1MB &5 (#)
(a) EHBEH

AEBERABBEHE
S EB SRR - B
MEAR2EBRNES
WU BB 5 2 BT BB AR
BRCEE FEEZ
BERAEEMBEITR
REZZNRIE - I
BERNEEEIARRER
BHELEZENEES
BEZARE - EHBE
PHEFPTIR AR 2 T B &
EURFAEzEER
FREBENSRUIER
Wz DREFE A&
EZZEEWBEE - bl
DAEHFERERE
ERBB L TRBIEE
FHEEEIASHEZL
PR RN WU E S
Z IR o

BB AR TN ELE
RS2 8 o

o/



58

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR 4 S EEHR 2N " o ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income

statement.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions - that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair
value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are

also recorded in equity.

2 BEESHRREE®

2.2

RelkE (&)
22.1MB &5 ()

@)

(b)

RBEO(HF)
FrgmAE - WWREBR
IR ERER S
RAEM AR R REES
ZRERBB ARz
SE R I P U B8 TR B
FEEAARBEZERE
DREAEE - HEER
ZR1E - SRABFER
G E Y IR ST
B2 BEER AT
MEARFEEZAR
BERBEWBZER
T) BlZE=HeEE
R R AR o

W& 2 Bl 2 B
2E (ZHETE)

EFERERETZR
7 WA EBHAREE
i - AMERERRS
— BMEREZER A (B
HBEEAG0)ETZ
R Ak EAEHR
B2 A REREEEMN
Fr BB B R R EEF
HARE((E 2 ZFHENER
FCRR o MFFEEIRER K
EMELEZBETRE

#mACHR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 #HFEEBAE)

22284 H

2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets

and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.

BENREMEASEEA
FEARFE I MEEGEZ
BEE —RHETH20%E
50% R E R 2 IR R
ERNRAZREUEREE
AR RIBHEDRE REA

HUEARER  MREES
B AR REER
W RREERRERZ
B - AKERBEQNTZ
REBBWBRCRHA 2B
Z-REBBERR A
RREmE - BE QAT ZEA
BEAREERGEBE AT 2
WA EERBBEZAREFRF
BZEMEZBARSEE -

MR ERR I B REER
WD MEBAFENBUR
B AEXaREMEEKE
AR Z 258 2B E L F 5
NEHoERER (WERA) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

2.2.2 Associates (Continued)

2.2 #HREKEHE(E)
222BELNE ()

60

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associates are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

AEERGEWEBER 2BRZN
mEWmRAER  MEMG
Hitt2HKBE 2 WEREE
BIREMZEH KGR
I ¥4 5% & ARk E{ELF B AR FE
o fAKEEEBE QT

ZEERERYBBHEAEZE
ENA D BREAEMHE
fils S 4 17 B WORKOR - RIAR&R
ErERIAE-SEE KR
FAKECREE X FAE
HERREERERFLHAR

AEEREREAHEER
BB F 8515 3% 0 R B
EQARRELTRE -
HERER  AEEEHE
WESE  PBHEAR 2T
WESBEEEREAEZE
B UREEWRERANER
ZEEE o

AEEEABENTAHZ £
BERTEXRZREE 2B
EAKE 2 BHRERARE
wo BENEBREREERN
BMENT 2 EBm AR o BRFE
REREMEZEEREZ
B BRAREERBETU
HeE o MEQNRZETHE
CERFEFHNE - UER
EREERAZBRER—
B o

REBELAR2REEEZH
BREBRGE WS RER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 #HFEEBAE)
2.2.3Joint arrangements 2238 E%H
Investments in joint arrangements are \EEZTHZ2REDEAS

classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The Group’s
investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

EEXBRSERA  BFR
REZEZANERNREBM
EeAKBCHMESER
BzHETBEEARER
B GELARAEREAN
R o

RIBEREEE &80T
ZREENTURAER  H
BUBRIAAEBEEKRER
AMESEEURAEMEER

BB MHOELHFE - K
EEREERRAIZREERE
RBRE BRI 2EE - B
WBEE QAR ZIEEER
K SE QR ZHAEKE
BELEE QAR ZEBRIE
EREBZARNEFHEZA
MZEARABE - EXE
EELEENRZEEER
FEBHENZEEE QAT
B (BEEMEE LERA
SERZESERTFERE

ZREER ) AEERE
BRE—DEIE BRIFELRE
BEeELEBBIEREED
RMEHARK ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 weWkB#E)

62

the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of the joint ventures have

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and a
jointly controlled entity are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received

and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.2.3Joint arrangements (Continued) 2238 EZH(E)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the ZF%.E’EE%'&"&TZF'HE
Group and its joint ventures are eliminatedto X REWRRAEBRE

%’AEZEE%L}{‘;\T% o BR
FRZRUTEREERE
ZEE > BAREHEBEN
FLEH - SEQR 285
HRCRFEELER - U

been changed where necessary to ensure BREAEERMAZBE—
consistency with the policies adopted by the e
Group.

2.2.4 Separate financial statements 224BLHBHE
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner

consistent with the internal reporting provided

to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief

operating decision-maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance

of the operating segments, has been identified as

the Executive Directors of the Group that makes

strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$,
which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 24 VBB (E

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued) (b) XBRBER(E

64

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance

(c)

FERMBEEREE (MR
DAREFABRRZBRAT
Rz EZRANERRER
RAREBE 280D 3F
EMPBEE (Mo EAH
HEZRATR) 2 EEH
st ARt 2 E YRS 2 7 #H

WREEREZIEETEZ
FESEER(EPLERES
BIREE 2ER) 2 RERM
BRRBUATHAXBRERZ
FIEH

() BOR2IZEEREX

sheet presented are translated at the RNZEERBBRZE
closing rate at the date of that balance EAERAMZKmE
sheet; Z]E

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

iy \BHORBERAZBEZIR
FiE R E (R
FIERIW IR 5 HiE
FAERZZHAFECE
BOE EREBERT -
WFEEZRRXS B ZE
RpHE) R

iy FrEREEECERZE
EREMEE RS

o
=]
o ©

WEBIEREEZEER
MREFABRRBZBIER
CEEREE  LRUTHE
RIpE c FEEZHNEBRE
ERENEMEEREDTER -



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %3 e MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR &4 EHEEER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.4 SMImE(E)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (d) HEGIEFERIBHHE
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that RHEEEMER (BNEERSE

is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the

company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 ¥ BRREHE

66

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Buildings are
recorded at fair value, based on periodic, but at
least triennial, valuations by external independent
valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated

to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land is not depreciated. All other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income. However, the increase
shall be recognised in the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement. Decreases
that offset previous increases of the same asset are
charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are charged to the consolidated

income statement.

BFIEEERIE - BFTRE
SNEBVGEMEHN(ERIE=
F-R)ETZEERRABERE
FRERITERKR - REMBZE
AR EREE 2 REEABRY
H O MBRIEINZEEZEM
A o

KARELIHATINE - FTEHA
YI3E ~ HEER K SR IR I SE B AN IR
Bk - BEMABERBEER
BEE 2 -

HERFEEEZEABEBEZAR
KENZETERAAER M
ZIE B 2 AR SERT &8 0 A&
ANEEZRAEREIARBLEE
(RER) - CBERIDZREEL
LIEFERR - FTE Hth IS RREAR K
EEEZHBEBRNBGRE RER
Bk ©

EMBFEL ZIREEZMAR
e ZEUES o AT - fid 338 H0EEE
HEEERNBEEFRS RERAME
RZEMBE  AIARGERER
MR o HIHEEEE UEE Nz
MO BEMmEERENR AR
R D RER S W R ER o



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %3 e MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR &4 EHEEER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 25 Y% BIBREEGE)

Construction in progress refers to the leasehold
improvements where the construction works have
not been completed, and is carried at cost which
includes development and construction expenditure
incurred, and other direct costs attributable to the
construction works, less provision for impairment
losses. When the construction work has been
completed, the expenditure is transferred to
leasehold improvements. No depreciation is
provided on construction in progress.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings Over the remaining term of the
lease, or 50 years, whichever
is shorter

Leasehold Over the lease term, or 7-10

improvements years, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures 15% to 25%

and equipment
Motor vehicles 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When revalued assets are sold, the
amounts included in buildings revaluation reserve
are transferred to retained earnings.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

Investment properties

Investment property is defined as property (land or a
building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease)
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for: (a) use in the production of supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes;

or (b) sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property is initially measured at cost,

including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in

the consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment,
and its fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property as a result of change in
usage, any difference between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation surplus of that property. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Intangible assets

(a) Licences
Separately acquired licences are shown at
historical cost. Licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Licences have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
licences over their estimated useful lives of 2

to 3 years.

(b) Contractual supplier relationships
Contractual supplier relationships acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. The contractual
supplier relations have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life
of the supplier relationships, and recognised in

the consolidated financial statements.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits

(a)

(b)

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Upon
the release of the pre-recorded audio visual
products and the materials, film rights are
amortised at rates calculated to write off the
costs in proportion to the expected revenues
from exhibition, reproduction and distribution
of audio visual products, the licensing of video
rights and other broadcast rights following
their release. Such rates are on a systematic
basis, with reference to the projected revenues
and the underlying licence periods, and are
subject to annual review by the Executive

Directors.

Films in progress

Films in progress are stated at cost less any
provision for impairment losses. Costs include
all direct costs associated with the production
of films. Provisions are made for costs which
are in excess of the expected future revenues
generated by these films. The balance of
film production costs not yet due at the end
of each reporting period are disclosed as
commitments. Costs of films are transferred to

film rights upon completion.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Film rights, films in progress and film royalty

deposits (Continued)

(c)

Film royalty deposits

Licence fees paid in advance and by
installments under licensing agreements
for distribution of audio visual products
and sub-licensing of film titles, in specified
geographical areas and time periods, are
accounted for as film royalty deposits. Film
royalty deposits are recognised when payment
was made and the balance payable under
the licensing agreements is disclosed as a
commitment. Upon receipt of the audio visual
products and the materials, the deposits would
be transferred to film rights and the remaining
payable balances will be recorded as a liability.
Provision for impairment loss is made against
deposits to the extent that film rights will not
be received and the deposit is not recoverable

in the future.

In case where the Group is unable to exercise
its rights under a licensing agreement because
the film producer fails to complete the film, the
Group writes off the difference between the
advances made and the estimated recoverable

amount from the film producer.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal

and external market information are considered

to assess whether there is any indication that film

rights, films in progress and film royalty deposits

are impaired. If any such indication exists, the

carrying amount of such assets is assessed and

where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised

to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.

Such impairment losses are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for
example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
2.10.1 Classification (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise,

they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected
to be settled more than 12 months after
the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise “trade and other receivables”,

“amounts due from associates”, “pledged

bank deposits” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the consolidated balance

sheet (notes 2.13 and 2.14).
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 HBEE (&)
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the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to

dispose of it within 12 months of the end

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date — the
date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

2.10.1 Classification (Continued) 2.10.1 54 (&)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (c) HRHEHBEE
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

210 UEEE(E)

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued) 2102 BB REE (/)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the “financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” category are presented
in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the Group’s right to

receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income

statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

The fair value of quoted investments is
based on their current bid prices in an active
market. Available-for-sale equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less
impairment.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that

can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Assets carried as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to
in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in the consolidated income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the consolidated income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed

through the consolidated income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In
the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If

not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after

the end of the reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company, its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entity operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected

to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised

or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and a jointly
controlled entity, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered

by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension
schemes.

The group companies in Hong Kong
participate in a mandatory provident fund
scheme and another defined contribution
plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in

the future payments is available.

The group companies in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit
plans organised by relevant government
authorities for its employees in the PRC and
contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees
on a monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed
monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.
The contributions are recognised as employee

benefit expenses when they are due.

2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating

losses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued) 221 BERRRARE)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised

as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured

reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will

then be recognised as a provision.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition 2.22 IR

86

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated
net of discounts returns. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below. The Group bases
its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of

transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Revenues from television operations mainly
comprise channel supply revenues, which are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract periods which generally coincide with

when the relevant channels are broadcasted.

(b) Film exhibition income is recognised when the
film is shown and the right to receive payment

is established.

() Income from the licensing and sub-licensing
of film rights is recognised upon the delivery
of the pre-recorded audio visual products and
the materials for video features including the
master tapes to the customers in accordance

with the terms of the underlying contracts.

(d) Revenue from the sales and distribution of
films and programs in audio visual product
format is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and the title has

passed.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

Revenue from the provision of artiste
management services is recognised when

services are rendered.

Revenues from theatre operations mainly
comprise income from box office takings,
which is recognised when the services are

rendered to the buyers.

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Management fee income is recognised when

services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method. When a loan and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest

rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)
2.23 Leases

(a

The Group as the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases
are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum

lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term
payables. The interest element of the finance
cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset

and the lease term.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group as the lessor
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor
conveys to the lessee in return for a payment,
or series of payments, the right to use an

asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under an operating
lease, the asset is included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on the nature of the

asset.

Lease income on operating leases is
recognised over the term of the lease on a

straight-line basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s

shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries or associated companies to secure

loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 HEESHREEE®
policies (Continued)

2.25 Financial guarantee contracts (Continued) 2.25 MBEREWN(E)

90

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on
the date the guarantee was given. The fair value
of a financial guarantee at the time of signature
is zero because all guarantees are agreed on
arm’s length terms, and the value of the premium
agreed corresponds to the value of the guarantee
obligation. No receivable for the future premiums
is recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of the initial amount,
less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The
fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in
the liability relating to guarantees is reported in the

consolidated income statement.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of subsidiaries or associate are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted
for as contributions and recognised as part of the
cost of the investment in the financial statements of

the Company.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and cash flow interest
rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Executive
Directors of the Group. The Executive Directors
identify, evaluate financial risks in close co-

operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
the Republic of China (“Taiwan”), and
the Republic of Singapore (“Singapore”)
and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB”), New Taiwan dollar (“NTD).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the functional
currency of the individual group
companies and net investments in foreign

operations.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation
risk arising primarily with respect to RMB
and NTD. Currency exposure arising from
the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through
sourcing suppliers denominated in the
same foreign currencies. Management
considers the foreign currency exposure
with respect to RMB and NTD is not
significant as the functional currency of
the respective foreign operations are also
RMB and NTD respectively.

At 31st March 2014, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year would
have been HK$503,000 higher/lower
(2013: HK$1,217,000 lower/higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of receivables
denominated in either HK$ or RMB that
is not the functional currency of the

individual group companies.

The Group minimised its other foreign
exchange risk by denominating majority
of its foreign currency transactions in
United States dollar (“USD”), which is
pegged with HK$ at a designated range
such that the exposure on fluctuation of

foreign currency rate is limited.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk because of investments held
by the Group and classified in the
consolidated balance sheet either as
available-for-sale financial assets or
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to commodity price risk. To manage its
price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the investment portfolio
is continuously reviewed, carefully
monitored, and diversified in accordance
with the limits set by the Executive

Directors of the Group.

Majority of the Group’s equity securities
are publicly traded. At 31st March
2014, if the share prices of the equity
securities of the Group had increased/
decreased by 5%, the pre-tax loss for
the year would have been HK$1,792,000
(2013: HK$1,636,000) lower/higher and
the equity of the Group would have been
HK$1,943,000 (2013: HK$2,093,000)

higher/lower, respectively.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

3.1

(i)

(iii)

Price risk (Continued)

Pre-tax loss for the year would decrease/
increase as a result of gains/losses on
equity securities classified as at fair
value through profit or loss. The gains/
losses on equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets would
increase/decrease the available-for-sale
financial assets revaluation reserve within
equity.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed
with reputable banks and financial
institutions and other receivables
advanced to third parties, which generate
interest income for the Group. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by placing
cash balances in these institutions and
advances to these third parties with
various maturities and interest rate terms.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash and other
receivables held at variable rates. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and other
receivables have been disclosed in note
30(a) and note 25 respectively.

At 31st March 2014, if the interest rate
had been 50 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$202,000 (2013: HK$602,000) lower/
higher
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents
and pledged bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions, and
other debtors. The Group only places deposits
in reputable banks and financial institutions
and manages its credit risk associated with
trade receivables through the application of
credit approvals, credit ratings and monitoring
procedures. Advances to other debtors will
only be made to those with appropriate credit

histories.

Credit sales are only made to customers
with appropriate credit history or high credit
standing while sales to new customers or
customers of low credit standing are usually
made on cash on delivery basis. Provision for
impairment of receivables will be made in light

of existing evidence of uncollectibility.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to close out market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, management maintains flexibility
in funding by maintaining availability under

committed credit lines.
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3 HMERKRER#)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

96

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBRKRERGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELELE(E)
Surplus cash held by the operating entities KREBRFEBRBEEES
over and above balance requires for working EERERSBHIEARN

capital management are transferred to the
Group treasury. Group treasury invests surplus
cash in interest bearing saving accounts, time
deposits, marketable securities, choosing
instruments with appropriate maturities
or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient
headroom as determined by the Group. At
31st March 2014, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of HK$74,259,000 (2013:
HK$100,363,000), financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$35,833,000 (2013:
HK$32,722,000) and other current assets of
HK$23,305,000 (2013: HK$51,103,000) that
are expected to readily generate cash inflows

for managing liquidity risk.
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3 HMERKRER#)

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMBRERERGE
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIELELE(E)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the TRETAEBERAQAT Z

FUTEMBRERRAEEZ
FMAER  REHEERZR
BHIHMA ZRARHBET
o RARBZEEAS
WRBRZRERE -

Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 5
1 year years years years
—£R —EmFE MEALE RAFERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Group x5EE
At 31st March 2014 R-ZE—MFE
=BA=+—H
Trade and other B REMEMSTRE
payables 67,196 — — -
Borrowings BE 20,302 1,517 4,575 6,674
At 31st March 2013 HW=-Z—=%
=B=+—H
Trade and other BEZREMESR
payables FIE 72,817 — — —
Borrowings BE& 9,070 = = —
Company ¥ /N
At 31st March 2014 N-—Z—ME
=B=+—H
Other payables H b e FRIE 141 — — —
At 31st March 2013 R-E—=
=B=+—H
Other payables H b (T FRIE 183 — — —
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or convertible notes and derivative

financial instruments, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided

by shareholders’ funds.

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing
ratio below 20%. The gearing ratios at 31st March
2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Total borrowings and overdrafts BERFEX B
(note 30(a)) (Ktit30(a))

Shareholders’ funds BRRES

Gearing ratio BESELER

The increase in the gearing ratio during the year
ended 31st March 2014 was mainly due to the
increase in drawdown amount of bank loans by the

Group.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMBERARER#)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 2R{EMHE
TRUGELT EDTIRAAETE
ZHMBITH TRAERZEEW

different levels have been defined as follows: T :

The table below analyses financial instruments

carried at fair value, by valuation method. The

REEEREEEERMS
L2 HREORERR) (5 —
&) o

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets °

for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

B (AMER) SEE (BER
PTE) RS — R P ME LS

° Inputs other than quoted prices included o

within level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

ZUBEREEREEHE(F
=) -

EMFERATEETSHE
ZEESEEEE (R TE
ZHE)(F=R) -

TREJINR=ZE—NER=ZFT—=
F=ZA=+—HEAREBEFEZR

The following table presents the Group’s assets that

are measured at fair value at 31st March 2014 and

2013. EEEE !
Level 1
F—k
2014 2013
—Z—@mE —Zz2—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAEiT FET
Assets "E
Financial assets at fair value through &2 R EFFABRER 28T
profit or loss EE
— Trading securities (note 23(b)) — R 5 A®EES (K7L 23(b)) 35,833 32,722
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EMKEE
— Equity securities (note 23(a)) — BRAFE S (f13F 23(a)) 3,029 9,146
Total assets HEE 38,862 41,868
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMEBRARER#)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 LAR{EMHEGE)

100

The Group does not have any financial assets/
liabilities that are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangement and similar agreements

during the year.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments listed in Hong Kong, the United
States of America (“USA”) and the United Kingdom
of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (“UK”)

classified as trading securities or available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets that are not
quoted in an active market are measured at cost

less impairment.

The carrying values less provisions for impairment
of trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associated companies, cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade and other payables,
borrowings and obligations under finance leases
approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

addressed below:

(@) Impairment of film rights, films in progress and
film royalty deposits
As set out in note 2.8, impairment assessments
on film rights, films in progress and film royalty
deposits are performed at the end of each
reporting period with reference to both internal
and external market information, for example,
sales forecast based on expected popularity of the
respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sale, and the general economic condition of
the relevant markets. As at 31st March 2014, the
carrying value of film rights, films in progress, and
film royalty deposits amounted to HK$71,545,000
(2013: HK$46,697,000). Changes in assumptions
used in this assessment, including the forecasted
revenue, may result in additional provision being

made in the consolidated financial statements.

e SRR MY R

4 MRS ST RAER

R RAHE TS ARG WBUBER
BRAMEZ(BREZBRATHEAR
BEZRREMHER) HER -

REBMBARAREHGEARRBR - FEE
AHEFTMEER ROSEEBBRER
HE RAREERTEMRFEZE
EREEZRAEFHERAR M
RBRREMANT -

(a)
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MR ZHEFER - R=FT—OF
ZA=+—B E¥mE - BH
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BERGRE B EREPIELEIMNE
& o

101



102

MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR 4 S EEHR 2N " o ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F3§

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A E TS A TR

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of the collectability of those receivables and on
management’s judgement. As at 31st March
2014, the trade and other receivables, net of
provision, amounted to HK$22,429,000 (2013:
HK$49,584,000). A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer and the realisation of
any repayment pattern promised. If the financial
conditions of these debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional provision for impairment may

be required.

Valuation of investment properties and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar leases and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties and
buildings performed by external professional valuers
by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair
value of the investment properties and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to

the consolidated financial statements.

4 MHWEEHSRAEE

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of available-for-sale equity
investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39
to determine when an available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired. This determination requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; and the financial
health of and short-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. If the declines
in fair value below cost were considered significant
and prolonged, additional impairment may be

required.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination

is made.

e SRR MY R

4 MRS ERAEE

(d)

(e)
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5 Revenue and segment information 5 IWBRSIEHE
2014 2013
—E—mEF =8—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Revenue Iy &=
Television operations ERER 50,503 55,879
Film exhibition and film rights licensing S MR EFRER S
and sub-licensing RERE 72,958 460,215
Sales and distribution of films and U EEmPtHERE
programs in audio visual product format TREZREE 5,213 17,174
Artiste management 8 AEE 2,336 14,206
Theatre operations EACE 33 13,807 8,303
144,817 555,777
Other income Htig A
Rental income from investment REMEHEESWA
properties (note 16) (H1aE 16) 7,045 6,577
Other rental income (note 14(f)) H S WA (BFEE 14(1) - 3,000
Management fee income EEBRA 1,437 1,431
Dividend income BREWA 1,120 1,142
Others HAth 4,219 5,024
13,821 17,174
158,638 572,951
The chief operating decision maker has been identified REBHTEESHEATELERE
as the Executive Directors of the Group. The Executive £ o HITESEHAERZ NIPRE L
Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in TEELE PERERREHRIERE
order to assess performance, allocate resources and HTESOREAER Y NPREBEE
make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors LRAL A2 o
have determined the operating segments based on the
Group’s internal reporting.
For the year ended 31st March 2014, the Group operates BE—_S—NME=F=+—HItEE
in seven business segments: REERHEZLED PR
—  Television operations — TR
— Film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub- — EHMRSEIREERERE
licensing
— Sales and distribution of films and programs in — UETERFRIERRITE
audio visual product format Sil=
—  Artiste management — EmAEHE
—  Theatre operations — B
—  Property investment —  pEmE
= Vetn enlind —  EERRBEEN
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5 Revenue and segment information 5 WSRSBEE =)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31st March BEEETEEKE P 2EE-ZE—NFE=
2014 by each principal activity is as follows: B=1T—HLEESHERWMT :

Year ended 31st March 2014
BE-E-WEZB=T-ALEE

Film
exhibition ~ Sales and
and  distribution
film rights ~ of films and
licensing  programs in

=

and  audio visual
Television sub- product Artiste Theatre Property Video
operations licensing format  management  operations  investment online  Elimination Group
WEEER
BWnmg  BIMER
RENERL  BORRR ¥R

L bLE BB BAER  WRRE  MRER  WAMM ] 550
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS000
fér 123 T .23 iz .23 T .23 T

(note (b)
(i)

External sales HAE 50,503 72,958 5,213 2.3% 13807 - - - 144817
Inter-segment sales FHEEE - 49 - - - - - (498) -
Seqment revenue PR 50,503 73,456 5213 2,3% 13,807 - - (498) 144817
Reportable segment profitloss) ~ AEHADHIE/(BE) 13976 (1,385 (4.957) 69 (18,231) (3,890) (9,151) - (22,039)
Reportable seqment assets BES Vi %977 120,68 25,089 5,820 50,580 217,111 2,602 (91) 449,24
Reportable segment iablties PES VR (22479) (44,221) (4,599) (1,778) (15,199) (23,039) (6,317) - (1763
Depreciation of property, plantand 4% » B2k 1E

equipment and amortisation of RS HRLHE

leasehold land and land use 2B

fighs (207 (189 (612 - 18155) - (549 - (028)
Amortisation of intangible assets £ &E 2 - - - - - - (209 - (209
Amortisation of film rights EEimEsEE (1,620) (27,998) (3,451) - - - (759) 145 (39,077)
Provision for impairment of EYREREZNEY

film rights and films in progress - (4,063) (1,629) - - - (658) 87 (6,263)
Provision for trade receivable SARNERRE - - (789) - - - - - (189)
Addtions to property, plantand ~ FEYE » BERRE

equipment 63 185 11 - 18,315 10 112 - 18,792
Additions to fimrights, fimsin ~ FEEZME  BHHE

progress and fim royalty YREZRERS

deposits 13424 53,133 2,830 - - - 1,411 (498) 70,300
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5 Revenue and segment information 5 WSRSBEE =)
(Continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31st March BEFTBEBEDIZHE-S—=F=
2013 by each principal activity is as follows: B=1T—HLEFEESHERWMT :

Year ended 31st March 2013
BE-B-cE-R-{-QLLEE

Sales and

distribution

Fim  of fims and
exhibitionand  programs in
film rights~ audio visual

Television licensing and product Artiste Theatre Property Video

operations  sub-licensing format ~ management  operations  investment onling Elimination Group
\E/.Tz o
E%HH

STHRR  WAEER
ShRR:  R08Y
EhEH RER BB BAER URER URRE VRRBARM b 158
HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSUOO
&7 TEx &7 TEx &7 TEx i &7 TEn

(note (b))
()

Exteral sales HABE 55879 460215 17,174 14,206 8,303 - - - s
Inter-segment sales APEEE - 3275 - - - - = (3275) =
Seqment revenue D 55,879 463,490 17174 14,206 8,303 - = (3215 5517
Reportable segment (osgj/profit ~ WEHAM(EE) /A8 (.10) (42.820) (4,709) 9918 (8,753) 47,768 (25,195) - (31,911)
Reportable segment assets T2RAFEE 25,890 156,939 30,864 2,120 26,216 224,761 2,94 (525) 469,206
Reportable seqment iabiities ~ 72HABEE (29,425) (54,356 (5,128) 124) (6,476) (20,351) (6219) - (124769
Depreciation of property, plantand 4% » BERRE21E

equipment and amorisationof ~ KEELHRLIHE

leasehold land and land use i

figts 09%) ) (%) Sy . o) )
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EEE 2 His - - = - - - 202) - (202)
Amorisaton offim igts syE Ry 750 (7 (156 - - - 65 3T (184030
Provision for impaiment of fln ~~ EZMEREZHEL)

fights and films in progress L] (17,147) (38,828) (606) - - - 2526) 45 (58,655
Additions to intangible assets REEVEE - - - - - - 605 - 605
Addltions to property, plantand ~~ FEYE + BERRE

equipment 8 16,142 - - 1,708 2 2,442 - 20,376
Adaitions to fim rghts, fims in E%JWE finE

progress and fim royalty YREZNERS

deposits 14,023 26,032 1,489 - - - 3,082 (3,279 41,351
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5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

(@)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Performance is measured based on segment profit/
(loss) that is used by the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. Income tax
expense is not allocated to reportable segments.
Information provided to the Executive Directors of
the Group is measured in a manner consistent with

that of the consolidated financial statements.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of
the Group are allocated based on the operations of

the segments.

Reportable segment loss is loss before income
tax, excluding unallocated share of loss of
associates, provision for impairment of amounts
due from associates, other income, other gains/
(losses) — net, finance costs — net, depreciation
of property, plant and equipment and amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights that are used
by all segments and other corporate expenses
(mainly including staff costs and other general
administrative expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude unallocated
interests in and amounts due from associates,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents and other corporate assets (mainly
including property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights that are used by

all segments).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude unallocated
bank borrowings and other corporate liabilities
(mainly including accrued charges of the head
office).

e SRR MY R
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5 Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

(b) The revenue attributable to the segment “property

investment” has been included in other income.

(c) Reconciliation of the reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment profit or loss,

assets and

liabilities are reconciled to loss before income tax

and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

follows:

Inter-segment sales are charged at

percentage of profit mark-up.

Profit or loss

Reportable segment loss
Unallocated amounts:
Unallocated other income

Unallocated other gain/(losses) — net

Unallocated finance costs — net

Unallocated depreciation of property,
plant and equipment and amortisation
of leasehold land and land use rights

Share of loss of associates

Provision for impairment of amounts due
from associates

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss before income tax per consolidated

income statement

cost plus a

Ao

ROBERERA —

IR 9EEE =)

(b)

ROEYE - BRERR 1%2?)?
ERHET R T EARE

2 B
BEHENT
N

ROMEERX

REWBRMIZBRAEHAER

AE R
FERERE

[MERE |75 FPREME 2 WEEETA

HMAWA -

i BERBEZYH

3 EF&E%Z%}‘

BERA Eféﬂﬁﬁtlﬂ—

DEBESHE R KA INE T E 2L
B USER o

2014 2013

—Z2—MmE —E-=F

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#ET FHET

(22,939) (31,911)

2,477 4,142

4,958 (5,085)

(891) (11)

(5,379) (7,422)

(401) (598)

- (3,191)

(2,111) 2,111)

(24,286) (46,187)
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5 Revenue and segment information 5 WSRSBEE =)
(Continued)
Assets HE 2014 2013
—Z—MmEF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
Reportable segment assets AZ2W|oBEE 449,271 469,206
Unallocated assets: KRAOBMEE :
Unallocated property, plant and RoBYIZ - HEREZERA
equipment and leasehold land &t + (R
and land use rights 204,274 169,403
Unallocated available-for-sale financial AR E A HEMKEE
assets 3,029 9,146
Unallocated financial assets at fair RABIRARBEFABRERZ
value through profit or loss s EE 35,833 32,722
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents RO BREREFERLER 75 3,790
Unallocated interests in and amounts ROBNABE AR 2R R IE
due from associates Wt A BRI 8,954 13,170
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEESE 7,672 13,636

Total assets per consolidated balance REEEEBRMIIZHAEE

sheet 709,108 711,073
Liabilities af® 2014 2013
—E—WmE —F—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FExT

Reportable segment liabilities AZ{HBEE 117,632 124,769

Unallocated liabilities: ROmAE

Unallocated bank borrowings ROESRITEE 32,182 9,048

Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOELEEE 2,030 1,753
Total liabilities per consolidated HEEEEBRMIIZHEERE

balance sheet 151,844 135,570
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Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan. The result of its revenue from external
customers and non-current assets other than interests
in associates and financial instruments located in Hong

Kong and other countries are summarised below:

Hong Kong b
PRC =8
Taiwan =)
Singapore A3
Other countries H A B =R

During the year ended 31st March 2014, revenues of
approximately HK$20,277,000 and HK$17,481,000 were
derived from two single external customers attributable
to the film exhibition and film rights licensing and sub-
licensing segment and television operations segment

respectively.

IR 9EEE =)

AEEXTEUER  PERABERE
it o RUREEBREME Rz ERE
Flz#kFRBEE(RBELT 28
SN BT ARSI 2 EEBMIT -

Revenue from

external customers

SERER kS

2014 2013
—E—mEF ===

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
44,193 65,974
55,270 430,234
14,273 11,165
11,030 19,822
20,051 28,582
144,817 555,777

RBE-Z-WNEF=ZA=+—-HL
F E W& #20,277,0008 T &
17,481,000 B T DR B DRI BRER
HRREXRERERERSHARE
BEBIB2MBE—IIREF -
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5 Revenue and segment information 5 WSRSBEE =)
(Continued)
During the year ended 31st March 2013, there was no RNEBE-_ZE—=F=B=+—BHI1H
single external customer which revenues exceed 10% of B #fi|mE—IqEFE NS G ANER W
the Group’s revenue. #=10% LAk o

Non-current assets
(other than interests in
associates and financial

assets)
ERDHEE(RBKELARZ
RERBBERERN)
2014 2013
—E=—mE —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Hong Kong B8 323,870 303,402
PRC & 172,533 161,105
Taiwan =) 23,313 6,192
Other countries HtER 21,306 17,341
541,022 488,040
6 Other (losses)/gains — net 6 HM(BKR) e — $HE
2014 2013
—Z—mE —F—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
(Loss)/surplus on revaluation of REMES M (BR),/
investment properties (note 16) BER(MIZE 16) (7,528) 42,151
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHLENKERZ
financial assets (note 23(a)) Wz (12 23(a)) 791 2,506
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEMKEEREEE
financial assets (note 23(a)) (H1z#23(a)) (107) -
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets RAAREFABRZRZUBEEZ
at fair value through profit or loss AREWE(FE)
(note 23(b)) (R1aE23(b)) 4,274 (7,591)

(2,570) 37,066
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BUEERSZMAX
SPASERA - M BRITRTIBHE
X RITHEX ZBXAHAT :

7 Expenses by nature 7
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution

and marketing expenses, and administrative expenses

112

are analysed as follows:

2014 2013
—Z—mf —E-=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories (note 24) TFERA (Kt 24) 1,873 3,201
(Reversal of)/provisions for REFE(RE) BE
obsolescence of inventories (note 24)  (fifzt24) (356) 566
Amortisation of leasehold land and HELTHE tihERES
land use rights (note 13) B (KA 13) 789 789
Depreciation (note 14) e (Mt 14)
— owned property, plant and — EEYE - BER
equipment e 14,875 12,674
— leased property, plant and — HEWHE BBER
equipment BLi] - 415
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  HeERREZ
and equipment (note 32(a)) &8 (it 32(a)) 1,013 =
Amortisation of film rights (note 17) B MAE 2 (M 17) 39,077 154,030
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEZEE (M 15)
(note 15) 202 202
Provision for impairment of film rights ZEMER R P ESREE
and films in progress (note 17) B (M 17) 6,263 58,655
Write-off of other receivables EﬂﬂFEHﬁZ % T8 Hif £ - 2,863
Provisions for trade receivables g 5 RINFIaERE 789 =
Provision for impairment of amounts ~ fEURESZ A B FUERE
due from associates (note 18(c)) BE(KHEF 18(c) - 3,191
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETE &
— current year — REE 1,523 1,587
— under-provision in prior years — BEFERETE 97 100
Direct operating expenses arising from E4AHEL WA ZREYEZ
investment properties that generate = EHIZ&EERX
rental income (note 16) (Btat 16) 1,354 1,322
Distribution commission expenses BITHEERAX 843 15,496
Employee benefit expenses (including EEGANFAX (BEESHE)
directors’ emoluments) (note 12) (Btat12) 39,395 38,700
Exchange loss /(gain) EAEE (W) 52 (620)
Marketing and promotion expenses EiEREERX 6,635 58,770
Operating lease rental in respect of BFZEEHLHES
buildings (note 35(a)) (K1&E35(a)) 10,492 4,200
Production and origination costs HER R AR A 10,920 10,508
Theatre circuits’ sharing PR ZR D IR 11,935 225,773
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8 Finance costs — net 8 MEBERE — BE
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Finance income BB A
— Interest income on short-term — BHRTERZIEWA
bank deposits 408 227
— Interest income on loans to third — BE=ZRFERZAEWA
parties 409 469
817 696
Finance costs MERE
— Interest on loans and overdrafts — BRREZZAE (891) (737)
— Interest element of finance — BMEEY 2R B0
leases — (14)
(891) (751)

Finance costs — net MERE — BH (74) (55)
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BB KM

Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Taiwan corporate income tax has
been provided at the rate of 17% (2013: 17%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
other countries’ profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.
Current income tax BOEA 1S 8%
— Hong Kong profits tax — BEBFEH
— Taiwan corporate income tax — REREMER
— Under/(over)-provision in prior - BAFERETR
years (BEER®E)
Total current tax ENRARIAHRE
Deferred income tax (note 31) IEFEPTIS T (KA 31)
Income tax expense FRi8RBASE

FRi3 B3

EEBANEH D RBARFEE M ERBA
U EA16.5% (ZZF—=%F : 16.5%)
ELBE - AECEMBHRINRAFE
T ERBABIZ17T% (ZE—=F :
17%)E B E - HBERFB 2B R
BB AFEMTERBABREAES
REEBMERRZRITBETE

2014 2013
—=—mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
TET FET

68 398

302 —

47 (12)

417 386

462 2,503

879 2,889
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Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

Hong Kong taxation rate, as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2013: 16.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates in
other countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes

Tax losses for which no deferred
income tax assets were recognised

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Associates’ results reported net of tax

Under/(over)-provision in prior years

Tax charge

e SRR MY R

9 FiRMEAZ®)

AEBEZBRAESHRATERE 2R ERRS
KABEREMTEEmMEZ =5
T

2014 2013
ot 3 —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
FFrRAIEsER (24,286) (46,187)
B E16.5% (ZF—=% : 16.5%)
STEZBIE (4,007) (7,621)
HtERTRREZS
(2,450) (1,519)
BAERBBA (1,764) (5,994)
FEHHBIF X
2,637 2,843
WRERELEMEREEZ
WIEEH 7,634 15,773
BRBARER ZBEEE
(1,286) (682)
2 E N BB (MRHIE) 68 101
BAFEREBEIR (EEEH) 47 (12)
RIAAX 879 2,889

Loss attributable to owners of the

Company

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$2,225,000 (2013: HK$2,723,000) (note

28(b)).

10 ELXFWB ARESR

ERARABMBRREEZARQAES
ANE(EE1EA2,225,0008 T (=8 —=
& :2,723,000787t) (ffzE28(b)) °
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11 Loss per share

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$23,896,000 (2013: HK$48,735,000) by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,633,035,000 (2013: 5,633,035,000) in issue during
the year (note 27).

Diluted

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the diluted
loss per share was the same as the basic loss
per share as there were no outstanding potential

ordinary shares during the year (2013: same).

(a)

(b)

11 BRGIR

EF
BRERNEBIIRADGEE A
FE 15 /& $828,896,00078 T(= &
— = % 148,735,000 T ) BR BA
FRAERTEERMETLEHH
5,633,035,000 (= & — = F :
5,633,035,000 iz ) s+ & (fizE 27) °

MW
ERBEEBDSRARCBRTESR
RINEFIIHERRAERTEHE
BESERmME

BE-T-mE=A=t+-AiLF
B mRERR A FLRERTE
BELER  HSRBESERS
REABEER(CE—=F 4
R) -

12 RREFIAZ(BEESEHE)

12 Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments)

2014 2013
—E=—mE —E—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Wages and salaries TERHFE 37,002 36,251

Social security costs AR B AR 1,852 1,877
Pension costs — defined contribution EAREHA — REMKETE

plans 541 572

39,395 38,700
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12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EERFAZ(BEESENME)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (%)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EFEE
The remuneration of all directors for the years BE-_Z-—NFR=-Z—=F=#
ended 31st March 2014 and 2013 is set out below: =St HLEFERRIBSECMEEHE
T
214 2013
i S Z5-cF
Other Other
emoluments - emoluments —
basic basic
salaries, Pension salaries, Pension
allowances costs - allowances costs —
and other defined and other defined
henefits ~ contribution benefits  contribution
Fees in kind plans Total Fees inkind plans Total
Name of Director EEl4 Eftdle - Afie -
Ty BiRE
AMRAR eus - O EERER EASMA- ;
fig EhAg  REMY & Be  EMAE ReMHHE it

HK$000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS$'000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000
FET 2] FET T fr fir fr fir

Executive directors UiEs

Li Kuo Hsing 288 - 4422 15 4437 - 4338 15 4,353

Tong Hing Chi (note () BERMWE ) - 1,690 15 1,705 - 1,607 15 1622

Chau Kei Leung BER - 905 15 920 - 876 15 891

Non-executive directors FUAER

Hugo Shong FES 80 - - 80 80 - - 80

Alan Cole-Ford Alan Gole-Ford 80 - - 80 80 = = 80

Chan Ngan Piu (note i) RS2 0) - - - - 72 - - 72

Independent non-executive BIAUfES

directors

Lee G. Lam HEE 80 - - 8 80 - - 8

Wang Huarong EE-A 80 - - 80 80 - - 80

Cheung Ming Man 8 80 - - 80 80 - - 80

Guo Yan Jun (note (i) SERE(Wi ) 80 - - 80 - - - -

480 1017 45 1542 472 6,821 45 7338

(i)  None of the directors has waived any of their () BEEEHNEHE-Z MO
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31st FR=ZE-—Z=F=ZA=1+—
March 2014 and 2013. BLEEEZEAME -

(i) The director resigned on 31st December 2012. iy EBER=F—=-F+=A8

=+—HEHE -

(iii) The director was appointed on 8th February (i) EBR-ZF-—=FZ"AN\H

2013. BEE-

(iv) The director is also the chief executive officer. (iv) FESBTHBITBEE o
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12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EERFAZ(BEESENME)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (#)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) REEEEFHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the FR AEBRENURSHMHAL
highest in the Group for the year include two (2013: A WmB(CE—Z=ZF WR)E
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in B HMEEREX 25z
the analysis presented above. The emoluments KRR - FRENHEMNTFHER=H
paid or payable to the remaining three (2013: three) (Z2—=F . Z2)BaFMA L
individuals during the year are as follows: ZBET :
2014 2013
—2—MmF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Basic salaries, allowances and HAH& 2MR
other benefits in kind HinEYRIZR 3,559 3,326
Pension costs — defined BURERAE — AE
contribution plans TS 30 29
3,589 BE365
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MEEHENT

Number of individuals

A®
2014 2013
—2—MmF —F—=
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000 % T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 %7t — 2,000,000 % T 3 2
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12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EERFAZ(BEESENME)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (#)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013,
no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the
two (2013: two) directors or the three (2013: three)
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss

of office.

Emolument policy

The Group’s emoluments (including the directors’
emoluments) are determined by the Board of
Directors with reference to their contributions in
terms of time, effort and their expertise and are

reviewed on an annual basis.

Pension schemes arrangement

The Group provides a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its staff in Hong Kong
under the requirement of the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme Ordinance”). Under the MPF scheme, the
Group’s contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income as defined in the MPF
Scheme Ordinance up to a maximum of HK$1,250
per employee per month during the year. The
employees also contribute a corresponding amount
to the MPF Scheme if their relevant income is more
than HK$7,100 per month. All benefits derived from
the mandatory contribution must be preserved
until the employee reaches the retirement age of
65 subject to certain exceptions. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds. The
total contribution to the MPF Scheme paid by the
Group during the year amounted to HK$453,000
(2013: HK$486,000).

(b)

(c)

(d)

AtEEFMALE)
BE-_ZT-—NFER-ZT—=F=A
S+—HLEFE  AEELEEB
Z(ZE—Z=ZF WMB)ESH=F
(ZZE—=F: =ZR)BaFHMAL
XAME  EAMAREE ZEE
RFRBEE -

B & B R
REBCHES(BRESHE) D
HESELSEREMTH KRB
k&N URKE 2 EEMBTE
E o WESFEHRE -

=20 3 08 kg

AEERBEEBEHELAEEE
BB BESTEGA D AH
EEEBIRMBFMEAEEHE
([BEETE ] - REBEBRES
2 AEEZHRIREBESHE
RBI AT R E 2 /B EARRAUIA 5% 5t
B FRmx=aRBEESAH1,250
BrefiEEZHBAKRAERS
B 7,100 T » Bl ERARRE
S EMFHEESE MR - RE
FHIFMERIN - R HFRATESE
ZE2HBAGETRE > EEEE
FESHREBRRFEAL BES
SECEERASEZEESH
HEEECELBIEE - &R
FEBRARESTEEL 2 HRA
564 453,0008 (= —=F:
486,000 7T) °
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12 Employee benefit expenses (including 12 EERFAZ(BEESENME)
directors’ emoluments) (Continued) (&

120

(d)

Pension schemes arrangement (Continueqd)

The Group also contributes to a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) which
provides retirement benefits to its employees who
joined the Group prior to the adoption of the MPF
Scheme and chose not to join the MPF Scheme
after its adoption. The Retirement Scheme’s
assets are held in a provident fund (the “Fund”)
managed by an independent administrator. Under
the Retirement Scheme, both the employer and the
employees are required to contribute 5% of the
basic salary of the employees (up to a maximum
of HK$1,250 per employee during the year) on a
monthly basis. The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s contribution after 10 years of
completed service, or at a reduced scale of between
20% and 90% after completion of 2 to 9 years’
service, in which case the forfeited contributions are
to be used to reduce the employer’s contributions.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay the related employee
benefits. The aggregate employer’s contributions,
net of forfeited contributions, which have been
dealt with in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31st March 2014 amounted to
HK$89,000 (2013: HK$86,000).

At 31st March 2014, there is no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future
contributions under the Retirement Scheme and
contributions totalling HK$73,000 (2013: HK$79,000)
and HK$14,000 (2013: HK$14,000) payable to
the MPF Scheme and the Retirement Scheme
respectively were included in the consolidated

balance sheet.

(d)

BHBIREEE)
AEBETFERAEETBARTE(R
REHEI DR RIKETEIBR
Rt EamErEBER
BBt 2R T MBEMAR
BeiT ez EERMERKER - B
Rt B2 EERBYEEAEEZ
AEE(TE2DEE - RIEBEENK
e BEEREEHYEASARES
EXFHFEL5%FEER(ERNES
ABEE1,2508T) - EERE
R1I0FERBEERZEREME
HZ100% 5K AR TH2ZE9
FHRER  RERLHAZHE20%
ZO0%EEMIAR - HELIBRT -
R R AE BRI AMEE 2 AR o
HESWRIEEREAEEXNHE
BERF » AREETEEERE
EEAXTE-—SHR - EREZE
—E-NFE=A=1+—HILEEZ
REWSERAREEEMAAE
(HBRIE W 3R) £ 89,000 T (=
ZT— =4 :86,000/87T) °

R-ZE—NF=A=+—H IE
AR A AR 15 R R B Bl 2 R R it
2R WA T E R & E
RERFAEELEZHRDBIEH
73,0008 T (=& —=4 : 79,000
7 T ) &14,0008 T(=Z & —
F 14,0008 7w) B Bt AGRE
BEESERA
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13 Leasehold land and land use rights — 13 ST RLTiERE — &
Group sE
2014 2013
—E—mE —E-=
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
At 1st April 2013 and 2012 R-B-—=fKR-ZE-—#WA—H 29,660 30,449
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHE £t 2 + ih{F AR 2 # 8
land use rights (note 7) (H1zE7) (789) (789)
At 31st March 2014 and 2013 R-B-—NER=_ZF—=F
=A=+-H 28,871 29,660

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use
rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and

their carrying amounts are analysed as follows:

Held under leases of between BRTER+F2HEOFE
10 to 50 years:
In Hong Kong REB
Outside Hong Kong REBEH

REBREE TR + i AE2EDS
BRENELEHEITRE  HIREES W
T

2014 2013
—Z—mF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRT TET
10,333 10,655
18,538 19,005
28,871 29,660
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14 Property, plant and equipment — Group 14 Y%  BRREE — *5H

122

Furniture,
Freehold Construction Leasehold fixtures and Motor
[and Buildings ~inprogress  improvements  equipment vehicles Total
B8 KR RE
KARHLY L5 ERIE HERE Ritli hi | it
HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK8 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK8 000 HKS 000
A1 A1 T A1 AT T4 A1
At 1st April 2012 WZ2-Z5MA-A
Valuation fhe - 128,790 - - - - 128,790
Cost s = = 845 25,626 2732 5,008 15,111
Accumulated depreciation gitiE - - - (13,246) 26,374 (3,751) (#3,371)
Net book amount BERE - 128,790 845 12,380 16,358 2157 160,530
Year ended 31st March 2013 BE-S-ZESR-T-RLER
Opening net book amount ERERE - 128,790 845 12,380 16,358 2,157 160,530
Addtions )l - - 16,864 7% 2,306 - 19,905
Acquisiton of subsidiary WERELE - - - - 471 - 471
Depreclation charge (note 7) BRI/ - (3,640) - 2,575) (6,086) (789) (13,089)
Revaluation surplus (note (2 EftRBite) - 10847 - - - - 10847
Transfers from investment propertes (note (16) ERERENE (K 16) - 2,562 - - - = 2,562
Disposals (note 32(a) WEWZ20) - - - - (20) - 20)
Exchange differences EXZE - - 2 253 158 497
Closing net book amount FREESE - 138,559 17,729 10,793 13,187 1375 181,643
At 31st March 2013 RoB-ZEZR=+-R
Valuation fh& - 138,559 - - - - 138,559
Cost s = - 17,729 26,650 46919 5919 o727
Accumulated depreciation giiiiE - - - (15,857) (33732) (4,544) (54,133
Net book amount BERE - 138,559 17,729 10,793 13,187 1,375 181,643
Year ended 315t March 2014 BE-S-MESA=T-ALER
Opening net book amount ERERE - 138,959 17,129 10,793 13,187 1,375 181,643
Addtions )l 16,767 4,509 - 12,837 10047 128 44,308
Depreciation charge (nofe 7) fTEBRE/) - (4,070 - (5,110) (4940 (759) (14,879)
Revaluation surplus (note (2 Bt RBWEY) - 15,122 - - - - 15,122
Transfers upon completion REmbkER - - (16,862) 16,862 = = =
Disposals (note 32(2) L&) - - (867) - - (161) (1,028
Exchange differences EXZE (324) (115) - (264) (59) 3 (759)
Closing net book amount FREERE 16,463 154,005 - 3,118 18,235 590 204411
At 315t March 2014 RoB-ME=A=+-R
Valuation ke - 154,005 - - - - 154,005
Cost S 16,463 - - 56,025 56,851 5,13 135,075
Accumulated depreciation Zitfie - - - (20,907) (38,616) (5,146) (64,669)
Net book amount BERE 16,463 164,005 - 35,118 18,235 590 204,411
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14 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

(@)

Certain leasehold land and land use rights (note 13)
and buildings of the Group situated in Hong Kong
are held by the Group under a lease agreement
dated 25th August 1997 with the Hong Kong
Industrial Estates Corporation (“HKIEC”). The
Group’s interests in the buildings are transferable
subject to the right of first refusal to purchase by
the HKIEC.

The buildings were last revaluated on 31st March
2014 by Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, on a
depreciated replacement cost basis, which is the
aggregate of the land value in its existing use
and the estimated current replacement costs
of the buildings less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation. The revaluation surplus net of
applicable deferred income taxes was credited
to buildings revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. HKIEC merged with two
other corporations in 2001 and is presently known
as Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks

Corporation.

During the year ended 31st March 2014, revaluation
surplus of HK$15,122,000 (2013: HK$10,847,000)
has been charged to the other comprehensive

income.

The Group’s buildings are stated at valuation and
other components of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost. The carrying amount of the
buildings would have been HK$93,755,000 (2013:
HK$90,232,110) had they been stated at historical

cost basis.

e SRR MY R

14 YR - WBREE — FRE

(&)

()

AEEETHE LR - EHAE
(MEF1IBREFDUAEE > I
HAEERER-AAEENA
T RAREEBTEMAT([TE
WAR DAL ZHEHZERFE o &
SEREF BT TFERE  ET
EWAREEELBERER -

BYEESERMEMERER
MTERARRTEEERAEE
BRIEMR—_ZE-—NE=A=1+—H
EfZEYEZEE  DRERE
Rz T EEEGTTREETE
BERAZBBERERBRERAEME
BEXZRERELCETE - MR
BRIELEFMEH 2 EMERDER
Htt 2 EWRETARRER ZEF
ELHER c TEPRATIR=ZZT
—FHIIMEATEH  BRES
AEBNEEAR -

REBZE-_T-—NF=A=+—HL
FE > BEHAEE15,122,000% T
— & — =% :10,847,00058 t)
EEEMEZEBETR -

AEBZEBFREBEIIE MY
¥ HEBERREZHMEHRIRK
FHER o (IEFIRE L RAEAET]
Bk BIHBRMEE & 593,755,000
BL(ZZE—=% 190,323,110

JT) °©
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14 Property, plant and equipment — Group
(Continued)

()

At 31st March 2014, a freehold land and certain
buildings with carrying value of HK$22,283,000
(2013: HK$125,419,000) were pledged as security
for banking facilities granted to the Group (note
30(a)).

The Group’s non-cancellable finance lease in
respect of a motor vehicle was fully repaid in the
year ended 31st March 2013.

Depreciation expense of HK$14,875,000 (2013:
HK$13,089,000) has been included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement
(note 7).

During the year ended 31st March 2013, lease
rental income amounting HK$3,000,000 relating to
the lease of furniture, fixtures and equipment was
included in other income in the consolidated income

statement (note 5).

14 YR - WBREE — FRE

(&)

(©)

RZZE—NE=F=+—H &
H{E 422,283,000 B T(ZE—=
F 1 125,419,000 5t ) 2 & T K
AERTHRETEFEEMER
FEBRERRITEEZERH
#30(a)) °

AEEERE 8T8 2 T A #HHER
EHEEREBE-E—=F=4
=t+t—HILEFERHEER -

T E B & 14,875,00078 T(= =
— = £ : 13,089,000 7T ) 2 =
AGZEWER ZTHBASZ A (M
7) e

RBE-_Z—=F=A=+—H81
FE > BEEERE  HBERRHE
Z i & W A 3,000,000 JT 5T A 4R
BWER 2 HMBA R (HEES) o



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %3 e MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR &4 EHEEER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

15 Intangible assets — Group 15 EILEE — x5KH
Contractual
supplier
relationships Licences Total
&
HEmERE R4 #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1st April 2012 R-ZE—_fFMB—H
Cost BN 4,000 — 4,000
Accumulated amortisation and 23t 85 R EE
impairment (4,000) - (4,000)
Net book amount RES{E — — _

Year ended 31st March 2013 #HE_Z—=%F

=ZA=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount FHREFE = — -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A A

(Note 36(b)) (KtaE 36(b)) — 605 605
Amortisation charge (Note 7)  HisSEF (f1a7) = (202) (202)
Closing net book amount FREREEFE — 403 403
At 31st March 2013 ®W-—E—=F=HA=+—H
Cost B 4,000 605 4,605
Accumulated amortisation and  Z5H# 85 K EE

impairment (4,000) (202) (4,202)
Net book amount IRE$E — 403 403

Year ended 31st March 2014 #HE_Z—MF

=ZA=+—HLEE

Opening net book amount FHUREFE — 403 403
Amortisation charge (Note 7) B R (K 7) — (202) (202)
Closing net book amount FRIFEmETE - 201 201
At 31st March 2014 BR-E—NMFE=RA=+—H
Cost AR 4,000 605 4,605
Accumulated amortisation and &t 85 & BiE

impairment (4,000) (404) (4,404)
Net book amount REBE — 201 201
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15

16

BB KM

Intangible assets — Group (Continued) 15 |ELEE — *%(F)
Contractual supplier relationships arise from acquisitions EREER-_ZEENFETZREEE
by the Group in 2008 were recognised in the consolidated ZEHNHRESRRERBZE-ZSZ LT
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2009. =SA=t—BILEFEZGREUBHRKE
oo
Management assessed the recoverable amounts of EEEABEHTWBEREBRAMELE
contractual supplier relationships by estimating the REeEREFHENHEERRE 2T WE
cash flows expected to be generated from the acquired HE TAERESHNHERBRREZRE
businesses and determined to make full impairment —EENF=A=+—BLEFEEZES
provision against the contractual supplier relationships in B IS SRRAEZ BUR B ERE ©
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2009.
Licences of HK$605,000 arise from acquisition by the AEEBR-—EBE——FET2RBEmMESE
Group in 2012 were recognised in the consolidated Z 605,000 B TERBE_Z—=
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2013. F=ZRA=1+—HILEFEEZHEHHERE
®’R o
Investment properties — Group 16 BEMX — F5KEH
2014 2013
—Z—mf —E—-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At fair value RARE
At 1st April 2013 and 2012 R-B-—=FR-Z—_—FNA—H 223,501 183,410
Transferred to property, plant and ERBYIE  EBR
equipment (note 14(g)) =t (M 14(g)) - (2,562)
(Loss)/surplus on revaluation (note 6) Efk(E518) Btk (#1:F6) (7,528) 42,151
Exchange differences B =% 21 502
At 31st March 2014 and 2013 R-ZB-OFER-Z2-—=F
=A=t+—H 215,994 223,501
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16 Investment properties — Group (Continued)

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement for investment properties:

Rental income (note 5) HEWA (KZE5)

Direct operating expenses arising ELXBESWAZREYE
from investment properties that FEEzEELERX
generate rental income (note 7) (Kiz£ 7)

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer
to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31st March 2014 and 2013. For all investment
properties, their current use equates to the highest and
best use. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

The valuation gains or losses is included in other (losses)/
gain - net in consolidated income statement (note 6).
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer. There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and

3 during the year.

e SRR MY R

16 _EYE — xKEB (=)

LT 2EERBREMEMNAGRERER
®ER

2014 2013
—F—mF —2-=
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
7,045 6,577
1,354 1,322

AEBZREVEHBIEESERM
EMERERMITERARETEL
HE UBEREVER-Z-—OER
—E-=H5=ZA=+—HZARE
FrERENENS  HETHBRENH
EeERBERE - TREGHEZHUA
REFIRZRENEETON °

EfREREEEBERGERERZH
s (B518) WaE — BRE(MEE6) - A%
BeBRANEHRER cEHAERE
LERBRAAAERBER ZEARE
e AFEERWLEE R FoR/KE
=REzEE -
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16 Investment properties — Group (Continued)

BB KM

16 _EYE — xKEB(»)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) LREZRIE
Significant
other Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
HMtEX EX
AHEREE FHEREE
(B=#) (B=8H)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Recurring fair value measurements &EEM A REFE
Investment properties: KEE -

— Commercial units — located in — BEEN — UREE
Hong Kong 13,700 —

— Commercial units — located in — BEEN — NRPE
the PRC 66,900 —

— Industrial units — located in — IT¥Bfy — UREHE
Hong Kong 75,000 13,834

— Residential units — located — FEEN — UREB
in Hong Kong 43,600 =

— Residential units — located in — FEEN — NRPE
the PRC 2,960 —
202,160 13,834

ERERTABRHBEN D ER
E(B=%)

Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

HK$’000

FET

At 1st April 2013 R-ZE—=F1NH—H 12,921
Revaluation gains credited to consolidated STAGZRE WS K 2 E MRS

income statement 913

At 31st March 2014 R-ZE—ME=A=+—H 13,834
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16 Investment properties — Group (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group’s finance department reviews the
valuations performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited for financial reporting purpose. These
valuation results are then reported to the chief
financial officer and senior management for
discussions in relation to the valuation processes

and the reasonableness of valuation results.

For commercial and residential units located in
Hong Kong and the PRC, and the industrial units
located in Hong Kong under Level 2. the valuation
was determined using the basis of open market
value. For industrial units located in Hong Kong
under Level 3, the valuation was determined by
adoption of depreciated replacement cost basis due

to the lack of reliable market information.

The key unobservable inputs in the valuation
method of depreciated replacement cost are
construction unit cost of approximately HK$11,000
per square metre and depreciation rate of 2.25%.
These assumptions are estimated by the valuer
based on the risk profile of the property being
valued. The higher the construction unit cost, the
higher the fair value. The higher the depreciation

rate, the lower the fair value.

e SRR MY R

16 _EYE — xKEB (=)

(a)

LREREAE

REE AR EE ARG
TERD B BIHRE HEMET
ZiHE - ZEHEERARBOY
BRERSEEEAEZ®R - U
HEBERMMESR 2SEMET

BEC

RAUREBRPECEEREEE
UERBE-RUREBZIEXRE
UME @ AEDRAMHEEEE
E-oMBE=ZRUNEB2ITEE
UME » BRZAIEZHHEER
REDRITEEERAEEE -

KANEEENALELERSBZ
EAFABREBEANETELK
11,0008 T 2 B EE VKR
225% 2 EX - EMFAM
ERM IR h B Y 2 2 BBtk RAE
et c BREBURAHS 0 ARE
MBS TERES - DABEMIK-
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16 Investment properties — Group (Continued) 16 BEYX — FKE (=)

(b) The Group’s interests in investment properties at (b) AEEZRHEREEIRZEBEENE

their carrying amounts are analysed as follows: EZMAOT :
2014 2013
—Z—mEF = =
HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#ET FET
In Hong Kong, held under: REB  BTHENEE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +ZA+F2HY 146,134 153,921
Outside Hong Kong, held under: REBIEI BT HENEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +ZAE+EZHY 69,860 69,580
215,994 223,501
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under HRIE T A A & FE A FE R 2 AR 2R
non-cancellable operating leases are set out in note BRIEHE S B EEMMEE35(D) °
35(b).

(¢) At 31st March 2014, certain investment (c0 R=-ZE—MF=A=+—0' KHE
properties with an aggregate carrying amount #1875 63,634,000 8 T(=ZFE—=
of HK$63,634,000 (2013: HK$65,521,000) were F 165,521,000/ 7T) 28 TRE
pledged as security for banking facilities granted to VX EIRIFIEREREBERRT
the Group (note 30(i)). =8 2 ER(HIEE30()) °
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17 Film rights, films in progress and film 17 BENE  SBEROAEERER
royalty deposits — Group MigRe — *5£H
Films in  Film royalty
Film rights progress deposits Total
e EXMmE
EXMmE ¥ Be oy
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2012 A_E—-_FMA—AH
Cost B 644,511 153,263 14,688 812,462
Accumulated amortisation and 2t BERRE
impairment (591,813) (2,589) - (594,402)
Net book amount B E 52,698 150,674 14,688 218,060
Year ended 31st March 2013 BE_Z-=¥=A=1—H
LEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 52,698 150,674 14,688 218,060
Additions Sl 29,476 9,258 640 39,374
Acquisition of subsidiaries DEPNE 1,977 = = 1,977
Transfers B 166,558 (155,511) (11,047) =
Amortisation charge (note 7) BHER(HH7) (154,030) - - (154,030)
Impairment charge (note 7) REBRHZ7) (56,802) (1,853) - (58,655)
Exchange differences EHELDE (13) (16) - (29)
Closing net book amount FRIEEBE 39,864 2,552 4,281 46,697
At 31st March 2013 —E-=%ZH=1+-H
Cost }M 831,506 5,323 4,281 841,110
Accumulated amortisation and 2t BERAE
impairment (791,642) (2,771) — (794,413)
Net book amount MRS E 39,864 2,552 4,281 46,697
Year ended 31st March 2014 BE_Z-ME=R=+—H
LEEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 39,864 2,552 4,281 46,697
Additions 0 40,651 2,813 26,836 70,300
Transfers B 7,405 (2,280) (5,125) =
Amortisation charge (note 7) MHERA (M7 7) (39,077) - - (39,077)
Impairment charge (note 7) REERHZ7) (6,263) - - (6,263)
Exchange differences B H =L (77) (35) - (112)
Closing net book amount FRIEmPE 42,503 3,050 25,992 71,545
At 31st March 2014 R-E—-NE=A=+—H
Cost B 879,298 5,821 25,992 911,111
Accumulated amortisation and 2t BERRE
impairment (836,795) 2,771) - (839,566)
Net book amount BmSE 42,503 3,050 25,992 71,545
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17 Film rights, films in progress and film 17 BENE  SBEROAEERER
royalty deposits — Group (Continued) BiEERe — F%£EH =)

(@ Amortisation charge of HK$39,077,000 (2013: (a) BREIERAE 239,077,000/ T
HK$154,030,000) with respect to film rights has (Z=&—=% : 154,030,000 Jt)
been included in cost of sales in the consolidated BIEBRCTT AGRERERZHEE
income statement (note 7). FRAS (BiEE7) ©

(b) The carrying amounts of film rights and films in (b) EEHMERBEISEZREED
progress have been reduced to their recoverable 1B T SRR B 5 18 78 14 6,263,000
amounts through recognition of provision for B (ZE— =% :58,655,0007&
impairment losses of HK$6,263,000 (2013: TU)REZEEAINEIEEE - RERE
HK$58,655,000) which has been included in cost of BEETT AGRERBRZHERE
sales in the consolidated income statement (note 7). (FFsE7)

18 Interests in associates — Group 18 MEEATFIZHEEZ — xKE
2014 2013

—Z—MmF —E-—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET

At 1st April 2013 and 2012 R-BE-—=FR-Z—_—FHA—H 773 -

Incorporation of an associate S A B A T 1,556 1,299

Exchange differences [E M ZEZE (39) 73

Share of losses FEiL B8 (401) (598)

Amounts due from associates (note (b)) FE YL FE % A T 5RIE (#152 (b)) 38,150 43,481

Less: Provision for impairment of JB - FEUREEE N B FIE
amounts due from associates RERE (KA (c)

(note (c)) (31,085) (31,085)
8,954 13,170

Less: current portion of amounts due & - FEWEEE N B ZIEREZDH
from associates (7,064) (12,397)

At 31st March 2014 and 2013 R-ZB-OFER-T—=F

=A=+—H 1,890 773
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18 Interests in associates — Group (Continued)

(@)

Set out below is the associate of the Group as
at 31st March 2014, which in the opinion of the
directors, is material to the Group. The associates

as listed below have share capital consisting solely

e SRR MY R

18 MEIELTFIZHER — F5EH
(#&)
@ UTHIKR-Z—HNF=A=+-—
B EERAUEAEEMEEEKX
ZAEEBE AT o THHEAT
ZRAERAEEEEFE2EB

of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the BRAERK ©
Group.
Place of
business/ Percentage
country of of ownership Nature of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest the relationship method
ERibE LR EER
HiegE #E B B% 5L B R ZESL REE" REHE
Hongkongmovie.com Hong Kong 49% The associate Equity

Company Limited
(H H KMH)

EBEXRKARLT BB
(T&EBEZLRE]D

HKM is an unlisted limited liability company in Hong
Kong and there is no quoted market price available

for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the

Group’s interests in associates.

provides playout,
post production,
high-definition
film restoration
and channel
management
services to the
Group and outsiders
49% ZBMERRAQAEER RBIHE
SINRALRERER -
BRPEE - BFEH
BERAEEERE

BERETHAKR—BBEBFELTE
RAF » HRDILEHISEHRE o

Mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
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18 Interests in associates — Group (Continued)

Summarised financial information for material

associate

Set out below is the summarised financial information for

HKM which are accounted for using the equity method.

The information below reflects the amounts presented in

the financial statements of the associate — no difference

in accounting policies between the Group and the

associate.

Summarised balance sheet

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net liabilities

FRBEE
REEE
FRBERE
RBEE
BEFE

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue

Profit for the year from continuing
operation

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

Dividend from associate

Wz
FECERB2FANE

Ht 2 mE W=
2HEWE (&R B
BEQTZRE

18 MBIELQFZHES — FKHE

(&)
EXBELFTCHMBEEHEER

UTEHNEEEBEXHKRRAERE
ARZHBERBE - LTERRBRR
BMENAMBHRRAZI2EHE — K

EEEZEE QNI SN HRLET
[EJ o

EEARXEE

2014 2013

—E—QmE 2=

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

9,740 11,505

27,659 20,400

(1,458) (189)

(39,191) (38,522)

(3,250) (6,806)
PEKBEGE

2014 2013

—E—QmE —EF—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

25,495 18,358

3,535 (3,236)

21 136

3,556 (3,100)
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18 REEAFIZERZ — KA
(#&)
HEEHEBECHIR
FR2HEEHE QR 2B E R EE
AEBRBERNRZEBZ 2 REBE2H
the Group’s interest in associates. iR o

18 Interests in associates — Group (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information of

the material associate presented to the carrying value of

2014 2013
—Z—mEF —E2—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#EIT FET
Opening net liabilities at 1st April 2012 R-E——HFR-_ZF—=FMH—H

and 2013 ZENEEFER (6,806) (3,706)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERAE, (FE) 3,535 (3,236)
Other comprehensive income H 2 mlss 21 136
Closing net liabilities at 31st March R-B-—=FER-Z—NF

2013 and 2014 =A E-I- HzEREaEFH8 (3,250) (6,806)
Interest of 49% in associate REEE A F) 2 49%

(2013: same) (note (i) (ZZ—=% : 8R) (#Z ) - —
Interests in other associates (note (i)  MAEALEEE N T 2R (A1 (i) 1,890 773
Carrying value as at 31st March 2014 RZ=-Z—NFER-_ZF—=4

and 2013 =A E+— B ZEREE 1,890 773
() During the year ended 31st March 2014, the () MEBEZZ-—NF=A=+—HIi

Group has not recognised profit amounting to

HK$1,732,000 (2013:
HKM. At 31st March 2014,

loss of HK$1,519,000) for

the accumulated

losses not recognised were HK$1,603,000 (2013:

HK$3,335,000).

FE AEBULEREBEER
#HE SR )M 1,732,0008 T (=&
— =% : F1#1,519,0005& T) °
RZZE-—NME=A=+—H " Xk
TR 2 Z5TE51E 41,603,000 % 7T
(=ZZ—=% :3,335,000/87C) °
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18 Interests in associates — Group (Continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information
(Continued)
(i) Aggregate information of other associates
Set out below is the Group’s share of results of
other associates that are not individually material.

18 MBIELQFZHES — FKHE

(4&)

MERHBEZHIR(E)

(i)

Loss for the year from continuing FEREER 2 FAREE

operation
Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year F A2 EEIE4AZE

(o) The amounts due from associates are denominated
in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

(¢) Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment
of amounts due from associates are as follows:

At 1st April 2013 and 2012

MA—H
Provision for impairment of amounts FEUREEE A T
due from associates (note 7) (&t 7)
At 31st March 2014 and 2013 R-E-—MER=
=A=+—H

During the year ended 31st March 2013, the Group
made a provision for impairment of amounts due
from associates of HK$3,191,000 after taking into
account of the associates’ business developments,
financial positions and other factors.

FREMLEE(FR) WS

R-E-—=ER-F-—=F&

RIBRERE

—=F

RURELEZEHEH
AT 85 A S 8 B 45 30 FE 8 B = A
2 HAbEEE N E) 2 AR o

2014 2013
—E—MmE —F—=

HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FExT

(401) (532)

(39) 6

(440) (526)
FEUREE N B FRELETHIE - A

HIKA - REREETEENRD -

REEEWEE N RRIERERE
ZEENT

2014 2013

—E—m§F —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000

TF#ET FET

31,085 27,894

- 3,191

31,085 31,085

RBE-ZE—=F=A=+—HI
FE  AEERZREBMENR 2%
BEE  BBERRREMEAERE
PAEUEEE N R RRIEE HRER A
3,191,000 & JT °
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19 Interests in a joint venture and joint 19 REELFIRSEXBCHEE
operations — Group — FEE
(a) Interest in a joint venture — Group (a) REBALAFIZES — F5KE
2014 2013
—2—MmF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET
Interest in a joint venture, at cost REZE DR 2R -
(note (i) BARA (B (i) 1,083 1,083
Share of loss (L EE (1,083) (1,083)
Amount due from a joint venture EWEE AEFIE 22,333 22,333
Less: Provision for impairment of B EWEE QA TRIE
amount due from a joint WERE
venture (22,333) (22,333)
() This represents the Group’s 70% equity () UHREEAEERMGEERR
interest in Guangdong Tung Ah Audio Video DEGRHERARQIATRE

DN70%RE-ZRAR
MEZFETEERE - &
SERRE2EZEFEZEE

Production Company Limited (“Tung Ah”). It
is unlisted liability company in the PRC. The
Group’s control over Tung Ah is restricted

by a provision in the joint venture agreement
that requires unanimous approval by all
directors present for certain major decisions,
notwithstanding the Group having a majority
equity interest and the ability to appoint the
majority of directors. Accordingly, in the
opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have unilateral control over Tung Ah and
the equity method is used to account for its
investment therein.

The directors are of the opinion that the joint
venture is not material to the Group at 31st
March 2014 and 2013.

1h & — IRIR SRR 7T 93
REEHTERBOHRER
HEERZHES  BET
ERZAEEAHREREECE
E-HHtE-Elt EER
B AEBYEEERTZ
BERmEGIE WS E
AEAREEEZRRZRE

BEERAR-E—DNER=
E—=F=H=+—H'zZ
EEQAYHAERME LR
Ko

e
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BB KM

19 Interests in a joint venture and joint
operations — Group (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest in a joint venture — Group (Continued)

(i) At 31st March 2014 and 2013, Tung Ah was
in a net liabilities position and the Group
has shared its loss up to the extent of its
investment cost of HK$1,083,000.

(iiiy There are no contingent liabilities and
commitment relating to the Group’s interest in
a joint venture. Also the Group did not have
commitment relating to its joint venture at 31st
March 2014 and 2013.

Interests in joint operations — Group

During the year ended 31st March 2014 and 2013,
the Group has entered into certain joint operation
arrangements with certain independent third parties
to produce films for exhibition and distribution in
Hong Kong and the PRC.

In November 2009, the Group entered into a joint
operation with HBO Pacific Partners v.o.f. (“HBO”)
to develop, operate and distribute a pay television
channel to be broadcasted in various countries
within Asia. The Group has participating interests of
40% of results in this joint operation. It has included
its interests in the assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses in the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the terms of agreement for the
year ended 31st March 2014 and 2013.

19 RE&

BELAFIRAGERGCERD

— KB @)

(a)

(b)

REBLAFZREE — *KE (&)

iy R=-T-MNER-FT-—=F
=ZA=+—H RRENF
BEMRR MAEEEUE
¥ & B 21,083,000 % T 2
IEEEE -

(i) BBEMNEBRAREREGE
NEZERZRAEBERE
E-R-ZZ—NFEFER=-F
—=§=ZA=+—-H  &X&
BEREETAEBRESE LR
ZEYE ©

REBRBZEE — *%KEH
REE-Z—NER-FT—=F=
A=+T—-—HLHFEE FEEHEF
TBYE=AFTIETREXKR
B UREEZREBRPEHRR
KE#IT -

RZZEEAF+-A XK
EEHBO Pacific Partners
v.o.f. ([HBODNETE&E XK » £
N ZERERALE  KERDH—
EREERIEE - AEERILLEE
EBEBIONXEZSHER
BEEARBEHZRIANBE-Z
—ER=-ZE-—=5=ZHA=+—H
I FERGREUBRRERAZEE

8E - KERBAX2ER o



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %3 e MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR &4 EHEEER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 Interests in subsidiaries — Company

Unlisted shares, at cost (note (a))

Amounts due from subsidiaries

& W Bf 188 2 B3R

(note (b))

Less: Provision for impairment

B RS R RE
(&t ()

of amounts due from

subsidiaries (note (c))

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note

39 to the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated
in HK$, unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

In prior years, the Group decided to make a
provision for impairment of amounts due from
subsidiaries of HK$233,885,000 after taking into
account of the subsidiaries’ business developments,
financial positions and other factors. There are no
movements for the Group’s provision for impairment
of amount due from subsidiaries for the years ended
31st March 2014 and 2013.

e SRR MY R

20 RIFBLARZER — F2F

FEMREG - BRAR (B (a)
H (Bt (b))

RIE R E R

2014 2013
——mF —2-=
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET FET
46,010 46,010
650,659 652,925
696,669 698,935
(233,885) (233,885)
462,784 465,050

FEM B A B FIEEA GRS MR
FRHFEES9 ©

FEUS I B A R FRIE LA B T BB
EIKH  REREEEERE -

EBEFE  AEEREEHEL
RAzEBRR - BT Rt
&%  AEMREWRHE L TRE
1 R B 13 5 233,885,000 & 7T ©
BE_Z-—NER-Z—=%=A
S+—HLEFE  AE@EEKKE
DNAREZ B EREREEE o
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21 Financial instruments by category — 21 BENBSZCHMEIR —
Group and Company XEEBRELT
The accounting policies for financial instruments have METACEFBRESEARTIE
been applied to the line items below: =
(@) Group (a) FKMH
Financial
assets at
Available- fair value
for-sale through
Loans and financial profit or
receivables assets loss Total
BORE
HHE HARER
HRRERRE MERE CHBRE #at
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
At 31st March 2014 RZ2-mE=A=+-H
Available-for-sale financial assets At HERKEE
(note 23(a)) (Hf&t23(a)) - 3,029 - 3,029
Trade and other receivables E5 RHMERRE 22,429 - - 22,429
Amounts due from associates ~ EUEEE A RIFE
(note 18) (Hizt 18) 7,064 - - 7,064
Financial assets at fair value BARET ABER
through profit or loss ZOKEE
(note 23(b)) (Hizt23(b)) - - 35,833 35,833
Pledged bank deposits EEARTEXR
(note 22(b)) (et 22(b)) 23,500 - - 23,500
Cash and cash equivalents HERZREELER
(note 26) (st 26) 74,259 - - 74,259
127,252 3,029 35,833 166,114




ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %3 e MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR &4 EHEEER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

21 Financial instruments by category — 21 RMHNBDPZMBEIR —
Group and Company (Continued) EREREFAF (&)
(a) Group (Continued) (a) FKEE)
Financial
assets at
Available- fair value
for-sale through
Loans and financial profit or
receivables assets loss Total
BARE
BERR e FABREX
e IE HBEE ZHBERE @5t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
At 31st March 2013 R-E-=%=A=+-H
Available-for-sale financial ftHERBERE
assets (note 23(a)) (K& 25() - 9,146 - 9,146
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMERFE 46,589 = = 46,589
Amounts due from associates ~ FEUEEE A RIFUE
(note 18) Bzt 18) 12,397 - - 12,397
Financial assets at fair value BARBIABER
through profit or loss ZHBEE
(note 23(b)) (fiE£23(b)) - - 32,722 32,722
Pledged bank deposits BEMRITER
(note 22(b)) (fiEt22(b)) 23,500 - - 23,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRZERRLER
(note 26) (#fzt26) 100,363 - - 100,363
182,849 9,146 32,722 224,717
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21 Financial instruments by category — 21 BRENNSCHMEIR —
Group and Company (Continued) EREREFAF (#)
(a) Group (Continued) (a) FKEE)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
BB E
SIRZ
HEAR
HK$’000
FETT
Liabilities afs

At 31st March 2014 BW-—ZE—ME=RA=+—H
Borrowings (note 30(a)) &8 (K1 30(a)) 32,182
Trade and other payables (note 29) B 5 Rk H AR (M2 29) 67,196
99,378

At 31st March 2013 W-—E—=fF=A=+—H
Borrowings (note 30(a)) 8 & (B3 30(a)) 9,048
Trade and other payables (note 29) B 5 Rk H AT (K7L 29) 72,817
81,865
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21 Financial instruments by category — 21 RMHNBDPZMBEIR —
Group and Company (Continued) EREREFAF (&)
(b) Company (b) F2F
Loans and

receivables

BERR
B R IE
HK$°000
F#EiT
Assets HE
At 31st March 2014 R-ZE—WMFE=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 20) FE WK T B 1 R FRIE (Kt 20) 416,774
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) REeRERBKREEER (Kt 26) 13
416,787
At 31st March 2013 R _E—=F=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (hote 20) FEUW T B 2 RFRIE (K 20) 419,040
Cash and cash equivalents (note 26) RERZERRELER (HZE26) 14
419,054
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21 Financial instruments by category — 21 BENBSZCHMEIR —
Group and Company (Continued) EXEBERENE (7
(b) Company (Continued) (b) FLF(E)
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
RESRF
JIRRZ
MBAR
HK$°000
F#T
Liabilities AR
At 31st March 2014 R-Z—ME=A=+—H
Other payables (note 29) HAth P 7R I8 (A2 29) 141
At 31st March 2013 R-ZFB-=%f=F=+—H
Other payables (note 29) Hth P FRIE (M2 29) 183
22 Credit quality of financial assets — 22 MBEEEZEEER —
Group and Company EELERELT
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither HARBHSBECHEEEZEEER
past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference AZ2ZNEEETR(NB)SEEBLHS
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical R ZE 2B EERETM
information about counterparty default rates:
(a) Trade receivables — Group (a) BHEWKRE — FKEH
2014 2013
—ZT—MmE —E-—=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Counterparties without external WIS ETFRZEH
credit rating
— Existing customers with no — BAENEERLEZ
defaults in the past REEF 4,418 1,834

144



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %3 e MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR &4 EHEEER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

22 Credit quality of financial assets — 22 MBEEECEHER —
Group and Company (Continued) EREREFAF (&)
(b) Pledged bank deposits — Group (b) BEMETER — F%H
2014 2013
—E—mE —E-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Credit rating (Standard & Poor’s) {EEFR(BEELEH)

A-1 A-1 23,500 23,500
Hong Kong dollar-denominated balances as at 31st R-E-—MNMFE=A=+—HUER
March 2014 represent fixed term deposits placed in ABNZHEFEEHNAE BEER
commercial banks in Hong Kong that are pledged TZERER  SEAERLTEH
against the banking facilities granted to the Group. FIERBITEEZER - ZLH2
Please refer to note 30(iii) for further details of the #— SRS EMEE 30(ii) °
arrangement.
At 31st March 2014, the weighted average effective R=-ZB-—NEFE=A=+—H £&
interest rate per annum of the Group’s pledged B2 EARTERZINEFLIER
bank deposits is 0.8% (2013: 0.5%). FRNERB0BE(ZZE—=F:05
E) o
(c) Cash and cash equivalents — Group and (c) Re&RERBEEEA — F£ER
Company v 3/
Group Company
&M 08
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E—MmE —Z-=Ff ZEB-MNE =—Z-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FEx
Credit rating (Standard &  {EE:F#
Poor’s) (L)
A-1 A-1 69,540 97,576 13 14
A-2 A-2 4,469 2,507 - -
Cash on hand EFRE 250 280 - -
74,259 100,363 13 14
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23 Financial assets — Group 23 MERE — x5H
(a) Available-for-sale financial assets — Group (a) FIHEHEMREEE — x5£H

2014 2013
ot 3 —ZE-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET

At 1st April 2013 and 2012 R-B—=FK_FT——F
mMA—H 9,146 12,553
Disposals (note (i) HE (A1) - (2,937)
Fair value losses transfer to equity ERERER N AEEE (6,117) (470)

At 31st March 2014 and 2013 R-ZB-OFER-T—=

=B=+—H 3,029 9,146

Available-for-sale financial assets A HERKEERE

include the following: THI&IE
Equity securities listed in Hong BEELHRAES

Kong, at market value BHE 2,980 8,970
Equity securities listed in US, at EE EmRAES

market value BHE 49 176
Market value of listed securities hEE2HE 3,029 9,146
Unlisted equity securities Ik LR AE & - 625
Less: Provision for impairment Bt OBAEREE (BTAE ()

(note (i) - (625)

3,029 9,146
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23 Financial assets — Group (Continued)

(a)

Available-for-sale financial assets — Group
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated

in the following currencies:

HK$
USD

(ii)

BT

=7JC

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the
Group disposed of fully impaired available-for-
sale financial assets with cost of HK$625,000.
Gain on disposal of HK$791,000 was received
and recognised in other (losses)/gains — net

in the consolidated income statement (note 6).

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the
Group made an impairment of HK$107,000
on available-for-sale financial assets (2013:
nil). The amount was released from equity and
recognised in other (losses)/gains — net in the

consolidated income statement (note 6).

e SRR MY R

23 MESEE — *%B0 =)
(a) TTHHEHEEE — S£EE)

AREEMBEEUTIERS]

18 :

2014 2013

e L
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
2,980 8,970
49 176
3,029 9,146

(ii)

BLEFER AEEHER
7X 625,000 T 2 B & BURl
BUREEVHEEE - B
HY 5 £ Uk % 791,000 78 JT 3t
RiGehamRkzH M (EER)
JWgs — B RETER (MiEEe) o
BZ-_ZT-—WNE=A=+—
BLEFEER AEBERHA
HEEMBEEFEHBRE
107,000 8 T( =T —=

T) o RIEBEREERE - WK
mEWRRHM(EE)

W ss — R ERRED (FRE6) °
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23 Financial assets — Group (Continued) 23 MEEE — *KB @)
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (b) BoORBEMABRERZUBEEE
loss - Group — x&EH
2014 2013
—Z—mEF —E2—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#EIT FET
At 1st April 2013 and 2012 R-ZE—=FrR-Z—_—FMHA—H 32,722 49,396
Disposals HE (1,163) (9,083)
Fair value gains/(losses) (note 6) A f{EUE (E8) (K:76) 4,274 (7,591)
At 31st March 2014 and 2013 R-E-—NER-ZE—=F
=E==F 35,833 32,722

At 31st March 2014, all of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and denominated in HK$ (2013:
same), except for a balance of HK$671,000 (2013:
same) which is equity securities listed in UK and
denominated in USD. At 31st March 2014, the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

are stated at their market values (2013: same).

At 31st March 2014, certain financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$13,876,000 (2013:
HK$14,958,000) were pledged as security for
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 30(iv)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are presented within operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the cash flow

statement (note 32(a)).

R-ZE-—NE=A=+—H8 ' fiE
BARBESFABRRZVBEEY
AREBLTRABSRUABLAE
N(ZZE—=F: HE)  HE&Ee
671,000 T(=Z—=% : #E)
AREE LT ZRAEBSFRUE
REMN R —MEEHE+—
B BAARBESABRRZUKE
ERETEIKR(ZZ—=F:
@) e

RZZE—ME=A=+—0 ' kA
#{85 513,876,000/ 8 T (=& —=
$:14%&mo%xJza$&@
REFAEBERZUHKEED KFA
EAEEBEMERRITEEZIER
(FFEE30(iv)) ©

BRARBEFABRRZUBEED
ERERERIFALEEELED

— MO REEXBERN 25 (5T
32(a)) °
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23 Financial assets — Group (Continued) 23 MEBERE — ¥&8 =)
(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (b) BoORBEMABRERZUBEEE
loss - Group (Continued) — XK@ E)
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABERZUBEEEZ
through profit or loss of HK$4,274,000 (2013: A REUWE4,274,0008 T(ZF
losses of HK$7,591,000) has been included in other — =% : E53187,591,00078 7T ) E
(losses)/gains— net in the consolidated income FFAGREWER 2 HAib(F5E) Ik
statement (note 6). wm — FRA(MIEES) °
The fair value of all equity securities is based on FIERAFES 2 A ABEREBEEINE
their current bid prices in an active market. BHE2RITEANETE °
24 Inventories — Group 24 8 — ¥5H
2014 2013
—Z—MmF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Finished goods BUR AR 5,961 6,431
Less: provision for obsolete B REFERE
inventories (5,879) (5,747)
82 684
Inventories mainly comprise audio visual products. The FETEBRERETER BRAM
cost of inventories recognised as expense and included W AGEREREEXN ST ZEE
in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement AN £1,873,000/8 T(Z&E — =%
amounted to HK$1,873,000 (2013: HK$3,201,000) 3,201,000 7t ) (Fff 5E7) o # 5 # B
(note 7). A reversal of provisions for HK$356,000 356,000/ (= & — = F: &K &
(2013: provisions for HK$566,000) for obsolescence of 566,000/ ) Bt AIRE Em R ZHE
inventories has been included in cost of sales in the BRAS (MF=E7)

consolidated income statement (note 7).
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25 Trade and other receivables — Group 25 BOREMBIRE — XK
El

2014 2013

—E—mE§F —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Trade receivables Z 5 EWFIE 29,927 51,984
Less: provision for impairment of B BB REWFEIRRERE

trade receivables (23,385) (22,596)

Trade receivables — net B S RIWFIE — 5 6,542 29,388

Prepayments FEfTRIE 698 2,995

Other receivables and deposits HEWRRIERZE 15,189 17,201

22,429 49,584

Less: Other receivables and deposits & - EMEKRFIERIZE — FERT

- non current portion EB 17 (6,270) (5,426)
Deposit for acquisition of land WL RIEFZIRE

and building — non current — IEREEB D

portion - (6,136)
Current portion R EER D 16,159 38,022
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other HRESREMENREBEZEHBARER
receivables approximate to their fair values due to their BEEFNEFE > RAKEEEZ R HA
short maturities or carry at floating interest rates (2013: BWREZRABEEEANRERE(Z
same). T—=F M=) °
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25 Trade and other receivables — Group

(Continued)

At 31st March 2014, trade and other receivables
are unsecured and interest-free, except for an other
receivable of HK$5,425,000 (2013: HK$5,694,000) which
is interest bearing at Hong Kong prime rate plus 2%
per annum (2013: Same) and secured by (i) first legal
charge over a property in Hong Kong with fair value of
approximately HK$13,063,000 (2013: HK$13,477,000);
and (i) a separate all moneys guarantee and indemnity
executed by a third party individual (2013: Same),
of which HK$5,138,000 (2013: HK$5,426,000) is not
repayable within the next twelve months as at the

balance sheet date.

The Group’s credit terms to trade receivables generally

range from 7 to 90 days (2013: same).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Current to 3 months BEZE={@A
4 to 6 months P ZE 75 @8 A
Over 6 months BB E A

e SRR MY R

25 BAREMBERE — &%

(4%‘)
R-—ZZE-NF=ZB=+—-H B
&Eﬂﬁﬁﬁuﬂz, BAEEKFARSRE
15,425,000 (= = F
5,694,0003% 7T ) zﬁﬂtﬁél& 5 )
REBBREEFAMEME B(=
Z-=F:E) TROHL2AEDN
#18,063,0008 (= & — =
13,477,000 8 0) 2 B BYHEZE — %
EHRE R E=ZFBIALTEIZE
Y2HEERRBAERRB(ZE—=
1R ) /EIK R - H 5,138,000 (=
T — =% 5,426,000/ 8T) FEREE
BERBBERRTEARNEE-

AEEEZGREWAFEZEEH —RNF
7TEQQR(ZZE—=%: =)

BEBUFIE 2 REDMUT -

2014 2013
—E—MmE —_=2—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FiET

6,617 4,577

- 1,290

23,310 46,117

29,927 51,984
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25

BB KM

Trade and other receivables — Group
(Continued)

At 31st March 2014, trade receivables of HK$2,127,000
(2013: HK$27,554,000) were past due but not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

=@BAR
BA=1EA

Up to 3 months

Over 3 months

At 31st March 2014, trade receivables of HK$23,385,000
(2013: HK$22,596,000) were impaired and fully provided
for. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
a long-outstanding customer, which is in unexpectedly

difficult financial situation.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AREE
NTD A

25 BAREMBERE — &%

B &)
R-ZZE-NFE=F=+—H EZE
W sk 182,127,000 T(=ZF — =
27,554,000 7t ) B @ BB RIE{E © %
ERNFEHES BT R/IFHRBRLHE 2
BYEFER ZEEZRUFEBEZER
BANWT -

2014 2013
—E—MmE 2=

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

2,127 2,743

- 24,811

2,127 27,554

R-ZE-NF=ZA=+—-H BEZE
Y 5% 18 23,385,000 8 T(=ZFE— =
22,596,000 B T)ERERZHEE -
18 Bl R B FE W 5k 1B = BB — B R R E R
Uz EERE - RIAEFAR -

REEE SR EMBWRIRZREET
T HERSIE -

2014 2013
—E—mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFAEIT FAET
10,505 15,462
9,061 30,463
2,863 3,659

22,429 49,584
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25 Trade and other receivables — Group 25 BHREMEBEKHRE — &K%
(Continued) (#&)
Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of AEBEZERFTIEREREGE2ESHNM
trade receivables are as follows: T
2014 2013
—2—mF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEiT FET
At 1st April 2013 and 2012 R-ZB—=FK=-ZF-——-FWA—H 22,596 22,596
Provision for impairment of FEWFIB R ERE
receivables 789 —
At 31st March 2014 and 2013 R-B-—MER-_ZF—=
=EE=F=F 23,385 22,596
The creation and release of provision for impaired EWEFERERE 2R LRBRE ST A
receivables have been included in administrative FEWRRAZITHEX(ME?) - B
expenses in the consolidated income statement (note 7). BERIKRzEE -—BRREHTWE
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally EHIMNR S IS ©

written off, when there is no expectation of recovering

additional cash.

HARSFERRS LMEEE

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting nE
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable W FkIE Z BRTEE ©

mentioned above.
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26 Cash and cash equivalents — Group and 26 HeRhERBEHEE — &%

Company ERFLF
Group Company
F5H 3/
2014 2013 2014 2013

“B-mE —T-=F ZB-NFE —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000

FEIT FET FEIT FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITREFRE 73,797 100,051 13 14
Short-term bank deposits SHASR 1T 17X 462 312 - —
74,259 100,363 13 14
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the RERZRREBAUTIHELIE !
following currencies:
Group Company
F5&H F0F
2014 2013 2014 2013

ZE-mE —T-=% ZB-0OF —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000

FET F#ET FAEIT FET
HK$ BT 5,143 9,559 13 14
RMB AR#E 66,034 87,131 - =
SGD Fhn T 14 13 - =
NTD A 2,903 3,659 - =
usD =TT 165 1 — =

74,259 100,363 13 14
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26 Cash and cash equivalents — Group and 26 HekhERAREHEE — &%

Company (Continued) BRFEAF =)
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the MEAEERERMS B ZEH
following for the purposes of the consolidated cash flow SHEARRITELZEBREUTRIE
statement:
Group
&M
2014 2013
—Z—@mE —E—-=
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkERBEER 74,259 100,363
Bank overdrafts (note 30) SRITE = (B15E 30) (1,893) (48)
72,366 100,315
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits RZZE—NF=A=+—H  "EHIRT
was 0.8% (2013: 0.5%) per annum as at 31st March ERZ2EBRENEZRH08E(=ZZ—=
2014. These deposits have an average maturity of 81 F:058) c ZEERZ IR A 81
days (2013: 78 days). B(ZZ—=%:78R) o
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27 Share capital and premium — Group and 27 BERBRE — FKER

Company b 3/
Share capital
B
Ordinary share of HK$0.02 each
BREE0.02ETZHER
2014 2013
—Z-mEF —E-=F
Number of Number of
shares shares
000 HK$°000 '000 HK$000
T TET FR FET
Authorised HE
At 1st April 2012, 31st March ~RZZE—Z—FMA—H -
2013 and 2014 “E-ZFK-E-NF
=A=+—H 15,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid EETRERE
At 1st April 2012, 31st March  RZZE—Z—FMA—H *
2013 and 2014 —E-=FR-F-IF
=A=+—-H 5,633,035 112,661 5,633,035 112,661

Share premium

B iR &R
2014 2013
—E—mEF =8=—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
At 1st April 2012, 31st March 2013 R=ZB——FMA—-H -=ZF—=
and 2014 R—_ZFE-NFE=F=+—8H 126,733 126,733
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e SRR MY R

28 Reserves — Group and Company 28 il — AEKERELF

Group (a) *%KHE

2014 2013

—T—MmE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FEIT FET

Share redemption reserve B AP BB B 12 12

Contributed surplus (note (i) BN BER (HIEE (i) 189,009 189,009

Exchange difference FE 5 =28 2,292 2,027

Buildings revaluation reserve BFERHE 63,065 50,400

Available-for-sale financial assets A HHENKEES Hf4E

revaluation reserve 1,533 7,543

Retained earnings REBER 54,466 78,362

310,377 327,353

(i)  Movements of each component of the reserves () FRBESHOZISBHARE

are set out in the consolidated statement of EREBRX -

changes in equity.

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group (i)

represents the credit arising from the reduction

of share capital during the year ended 31st

March 1999, and the transfer from share

premium during the year ended 31st March

2010 (note 28 (b)(i)).

TEBZHARBRIENREE
- AANE=ZA=+—AH1L
FEHRBRARBZE_-Z—
ZE=ZA=+-—HLFEEE
% B IR 10 % (8 (M 2E 28(b)(i)
FREE ZHR -
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e RS ERAR MY R

28 Reserves — Group and Company

(Continued)
(b) Company

At 1st April 2012

Loss for the year (note 10)

At 31st March 2013

At 1st April 2013

Loss for the year (note 10)

At 31st March 2014

R-ZE-—#NMB—-H
FREB(MZ10)

RZE-=#=H=1—-H

R-ZE-=£NmF—H
FREB(HEZ10)

R-ZE-N&E=B=+—H

28 fifm — FREREL2F @)

(b) ZH&H
Share
redemption  Contributed Accumulated
reserve surplus losses Total
B 473 W [E1 6 i BAERR REGHE #Et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
(note (i)
(HEZ ()
12 235,020 (6,485) 228,547
= - (2,723) (2,723)
12 235,020 (9,208) 225,824
12 235,020 (9,208) 225,824
- - (2,225) (2,225)
12 235,020 (11,433) 223,599
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28 Reserves — Group and Company
(Continued)

(b) Company (Continued)

(i)

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the par
value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange for the issued share capital of the
subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired, the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital during the year
ended 31st March 1999 and the transfer from
share premium during the year ended 31st
March 2010. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus shall not be distributable if these are

reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities

as they become due; or

(2) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium

account.

On 21st December 2009, a special resolution
was passed to cancel the share premium
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the
Company as of 22nd December 2009, and
the remaining balance of the credit arising
therefrom be credited to the contributed

surplus account of the Company.

28 ftifm —

e SRR MY R

XEEREAF (&)

(b) F1F(E)

(i)

KRB ZHABBEARLD
ARBBNEATC®T
JR A< 8% 47 2 IR 40 T 1B B2 Y
WEHBELAREEFEZE

S+-ALFEEHRRAE
EREBE-_SE—-—=H=H4

=t+—ALETEAROEE
BRTELZEE  RET
R — NN\~ AFE (S
i) B REEETRET
FIEE  ABARBTTH
DI :

(1) ANATREBHHIELS
REEENREEEZH
BXAEE; =

() ARAEEZTUZRE
BEEEAMIREEER
HEBITRAUR KRG
BB o

R-ZBBAFT=R=1—
B —HEEIRBEREES
DAGESH IR 05 (B - DU S A
RAR-FFENLF+Z=AR
“t+ZHRZRAFEE mH
WESE ZERBFARDF
ZEABERER o
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29 Trade and other payables — Group and 20 BHRHEMEMRE —
Company ERERELAT
Group Company
350 F40F
2014 2013 2014 2013

“B-mE —T-=F ZB-NFE —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET FET FiBT
Trade payables ESERIE 3,631 4,157 — =
Other payables and accruals ~ HENFIEREEH 63,565 68,660 141 183
67,196 72,817 141 183
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: BZBARIBZRRDNAOT :

Group

31
2014 2013
—E=—mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current to 3 months BZE=@EA 1,790 2,149
4 to 6 months POz 75 1@E B 496 78
Over 6 months BB NME A 1,345 1,930
3,631 4,157
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29 Trade and other payables — Group and 20 S RHEMEBEFMARIE —
Company (Continued) XEEREAF @)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s AEERAQRGRESREMEBENRIEZ
trade and other payables approximate their fair values, REEEAEAREBERESE  LUTIEE
and are denominated in the following currencies: SI{E :
Group Company
%M . 3|
2014 2013 2014 2013

—F-mE -—F-=F Z$-AF —-FT-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET FHEIT FiBT

HK$ BT 19,649 23,778 141 183

RMB AR 46,991 47,720 - —

UsD =TT 527 1,240 - -

NTD HEs 29 79 - -

67,196 72,817 141 183

30 Borrowings — Group 30 f&EE — xKHE

2014 2013

—Z=—mE —E-=5F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Bank overdrafts, secured RITEX E}EH‘? 1,893 48

Secured bank loans — current BIRBIRITER — RBILH

portion 18,342 9,000

Bank borrowings — current portion IRITEE — REZ M 20,235 9,048
Secured bank loans — non-current BEARTER — R

portion 11,947 —

Total borrowings HE#%E 32,182 9,048
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30 Borrowings — Group (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1 to 2 years
Between 2 to 5 years

Later than 5 years

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

18R
1Z22FR
2E5FR
5%F%

denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
NTD

BT
ek

30 8 — x5KE =)

REBEEANTIIHEERE

2014 2013
—Z—QmF =F-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRExT FET
20,235 9,048
1,486 —
4,304 —
6,157 —
32,182 9,048

AEBEEZREBENATHIESHIE :

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FExT
18,893 9,048
13,289 —
32,182 9,048
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30 Borrowings — Group (Continued)

At 31st March 2014, banking facilities amounting to
HK$79,995,000 (2013: HK$65,500,000) granted by banks
to the Group are secured by the following:

(i) legal charges over certain of the Group’s a freehold
land and certain buildings with carrying value of
HK$22,283,000 (2013: HK$125,419,000) (note 14(c))
and certain investment properties with carrying
value of HK$63,634,000 (2013: HK$65,521,000)
(note 16(c));

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the Company
(note 33);

(il) pledged bank deposits of HK$23,500,000 (2013:
HK$23,500,000) of the Group (note 22(b)).

(iv) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$13,876,000 (2013: HK$14,958,000) of the Group
(note 23(b)).

At 31st March 2014, the Group’s bank borrowings bear
floating interest rates of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 0.25% p.a. to 2.5% p.a., five-year
benchmark interest rate for Renminbi-denominated loans
by The People’s Bank of China (“PBC”) and fixed interest
rate of 2.1% for New Taiwan dollar-denominated loans.
The weighted average effective interest rate per annum
of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31st March 2014 is
2.33%.

At 31st March 2013, the Group’s bank borrowings bear
floating interest rates of HIBOR plus 0.25% p.a. to 2.5%
p.a. and five-year benchmark interest rate for Renminbi-
denominated loans by PBC. The weighted average
effective interest rate per annum of the Group’s bank
borrowings as at 31st March 2013 is 2.95%.

e SRR MY R

30 8 — x5KE =)

RZE-—NFE=A=+—H ' €5
#79,995,0008 (= & — = F:
65,500,000 7T ) 2 RITEECERIT
RPAEE > WHATERR

(i) EEEEZ%ZZ%SOOO}%E(:’%
— = £ :125,419,0008 Tt ) Z
ZF%I%’??KR%%iiH}&%’
FFMF14c) REEEA
63,634,000 T(= & — = & :
65,521,000 ) 2 & TIREME
(FfEE16(c)) ZEEHE ;

(i) ARTFEYL 2R AERHEESS);

(iii) ZSEIE}EH@iEﬁﬁ%
23,500,000 (= & — =
23,500,000 % 7o) (MizE 22(b )) ;

vy AEERARBEFABERZ
,ﬁﬁ%ﬁism 876,0007& jt(= =
— = £ : 14,958,000 7T ) (Fff 5
23(b))°

A—E-—NME=ZA=+—H  X&£H
ZHRTEEREBRTEAEFRE(SE
BIRTEERE MO EZ25E
FEHEMNE FEAARBKRTIREA
Efﬁﬁj)z_ﬁiﬁﬂgﬁﬂ (AR
RMs) REEME21E(RIFA
ﬁ%‘é AME)sT R - R=—ZT—NFE=H
=t+—H AEBRITEEZMEFEY
ERFNER2.33E

R-ZE—=F=A=+—H0 ' £5EZ
IRITEEREBIRITRIZEREM0.25E
E2. 5@25¥EE*U’?&¢'HAEE’_
ZHEFHEENR(GIARBERMNS)
ﬁ%°m—§—:$:ﬁ:+—ﬁ’$
SEERTEEZNELHERERNES
295 o
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30

31

BB KM

Borrowings — Group (Continued)
The fair values of the borrowings approximate their

carrying amounts at 31st March 2014 and 2013.

Deferred income tax — Group

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis. The analysis of deferred income tax

assets and deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

30 B — FEEB )
REZSE—NER=SE—=H=F=+—
B EE>AREREERERE -

31 BEMBR — $5H
fiti 85 B 1k 5360 460 A 4T A U6 B S0 P48
EERNBFENAEES  RBEER
BHRAERAEER —BBRE @
TR RERBE R 2 SRR

Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12
months

Deferred income tax liabilities to be
crystallised after more than 12

months

Deferred income tax liabilities — net

MEREREESRFEEELEHRE
W BEREHEEHESEEHES -
BEMSREERELEMSHREBIM
mr
2014 2013
—Z—mE —E-—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HREB12EA &K E 2
REFEHERE
(3,611) (3,808)
HREBR12EARERZ
ELEFEHasE
24,362 21,670
EEFRBHAE — 20,751 17,862
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31 Deferred income tax — Group (Continued) 31 BREFRBR — *KB(#)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is

as follows:

At 1st April 2013 and 2012

Tax charged to the consolidated
income statement (note 9)

Tax charged to other comprehensive
income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2014 and 2013

REFTSFRE 2 FEFBHNT -

2014 2013
—2—MmF —E-=

HK$°000 HK$°000

TFET FET

R-BE-—=FR-_ZT—_—FWA—H 17,862 13,660
RiFE B RMBR 2 HIE

(et 9) 462 2,503

REMEERENRZ

BiIE 2,457 1,634

B 5 =5 (30) 65
R-B-—NER=ZT—=

SHE A 20,751 17,862
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31 Deferred income tax — Group (Continued)

The movement in deferred

income tax assets

and liabilities during the year, without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same

tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1st April 2012

Charged to the consolidated

income statement
Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2013

Charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income
statement

Charged to other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences

At 31st March 2014

R-ZZB—-HMA—A
RS W R R

REAML 2 E SRR
fEHEZE
N—_E—=
=B=+—H
RiEERERNER
(§F )
REMZEKE N

BE 5 =40

R-E-—NFE=F=+—H

31 BREEMBM — B @)
REAREE 2 BB S BB R IKHE LS

ZERELEFMEHREEHESEE2FH U
T :
BIEFRBSRAR
Accelerated
tax Fair value
depreciation gains Total
MERERE LRERR et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FiET FET
5,013 12,484 17,497
215 2,259 2,474
— 1,634 1,634
— 65 65
5,228 16,442 21,670
452 (187) 265
— 2,457 2,457
— (30) (30)
5,680 18,682 24,362
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31 Deferred income tax — Group (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

e SRR MY R

RIEFRSIR — KB (2
BEFRBREE

Tax losses
REABHA

2014 2013

—E-mE —=-=%

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

At 1st April 2013 and 2012 N_EBE—=FEFK_FT—_—FMA—H (3,808) (3,837)

Charged to the consolidated income R4 & W XRINE

statement 197 29
At 31st March 2014 and 2013 REB-NER=F—=

=A=+—H (3,611) (3,808)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$332,693,000 (2013: HK$299,043,000) that can be
carried forward against future taxable income. These tax
losses have not been recognised due to uncertainty of
future realisation. Such tax losses have no expiry date,
except for the tax losses amounting to HK$49,188,000
(2013: HK$20,750,000) which will be expired within 5
years; HK$2,874,000 which will be expired within 5 to 10
years as of 31st March 2014.

AABREFEDREENENRERA
REEBARRERBAETFUZRERR
BRARELEFRBHEE  NEEFRE
SRR IEE 18 332,693,000 8 T (= FE—=
F 1 299,043,000 8 7T ) Al #5885 LUK 855K
RZERBUA o R TREMHEE A IREE
RER  HMUBEBEIAZEFRIEES - Z
EREFEBLEZEA ERA=ZZ—T
F=HA=+—H49,188,000 B Tt (= =&
— =% :20,750,000%8 ) 2 HEE B
BREFEREIH - &%2,874,000 7t i%
REZ+FEREE -
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32 Cash generated from operations 32 EEMER:
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) FMEERIIGEEEERSARZ
generated from operations HiR
2014 2013
bt —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Loss before income tax BRATERAIEE (24,286) (46,187)
Adjustments for: ST
Amortisation of leasehold land and land A& it % £ it FRESE
use rights (note 13) (BfaE13) 789 789
Depreciation of property, plant and M MR RRETE
equipment (note 14) (Bt 14) 14,875 13,089
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE  HERFBREZER
equipment (see below) (RT30) 1,013 -
Loss/(surplus) on revaluation of REVEEHEE(BE)
investment properties (note 16) (Biat16) 7,528 (42,151)
Amortisation of film rights (note 17) S NREESE (ML 17) 39,077 154,030
Provision for impairment of film rights EYRERBERETFESEHE
and films in progress (note 17) B (M 17) 6,263 58,655
Share of loss of associates (note 18) FEfLE & A RIEE (A1t 18) 401 598
Provisions for trade receivables (note 7) L Z WG IERE (K2 7) 789 —
Provision for impairment of amounts FE Wi & N R B R E RHE
due from associates (note 18(c)) (K&t 18(c)) - 3,191
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEENKEE 2 W&
financial assets (note 23(a)) (Bfaz23(a)) (791) (2,506)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHLENKEE 2 RERE
financial assets (note 6) (#fzte) 107 -
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets ~ BRAAEABRERZHBEE
at fair value through profit or loss EZAREBEG) EE
(note 23(b)) 2 23(b) (4,274) 7,591
(Reversal of)/provisions for RELFE (BE),BiE
obsolescence of inventories (note 24) (Hizt24) (356) 566
Write-off of other receivables (note 7) H th GBS (472 7) - 2,863
Interest income (note 8) RMEWA (H1:E8) (817) (696)
Interest expense on loans and ERRBEXZFEBL (AE8)
overdrafts (note 8) 891 737
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32 Cash generated from operations 32 EEMBBEEL=
(Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) MFABRAGREZTERBARZ
generated from operations (Continued) IR (&)
2014 2013
—Z-mE —
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Interest element of finance leases BERN 2S5 (A2 8)
(note 8) - 14
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEBE (ML 15)
(note 15) 202 202

Changes in working capital (excluding EEESEEH(TEEREREZ
the effects of exchange differences on EREZHEEE) .

consolidation):

Inventories 7E 958 328
Trade and other receivables g5 &HJ’@EH&Z?'”IE 21,080 11,486
Amounts due from associates i ENCTE 5,333 2,430
Trade and other payables g5 KZE@FEH%AIE (7,877) 21,657
Receipts in advance S E TS| (3,836) (48,533)
Cash generated from operations EEMESRE 57,069 138,153
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32 Cash generated from operations 32 BEMBHR&#
(Continued)
(a) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (a) BFARHRABREEBERBIASEZ
generated from operations (Continued) B (&
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds REERERBRA » HEWE
from disposal of property, plant and equipment HeE RSB 2 BB !
comprise:
2014 2013
—2—MmF —E-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRIT FET
Net book amount (note 14) BRTEFHE (B1aE 14) 1,028 20
Loss on disposal of property, plant HE&EY ¥ « HERREZ
and equipment (note 7) 18 (M 7) (1,013) —

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE - #ERREZ

plant and equipment e 1E 15 20
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year (b) FAREELESH
Obligations
Bank loans under finance leases
|MITH™ MEHEVAR
2014 2013 2014 2013

—F-mE -—F-=F Z$-mF -T-=F
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000

FRT FET FET FET
At 1st April 2013 and 2012 RZE—=FF
“Z-“HWNA—-H 9,000 19,458 - 252
Proceeds from bank loans RITERZFIEIE 28,550 — - -
Repayments of bank loans BERITER (7,000) (10,458) - —
Repayments of capital element EEFREHLNZ
of finance leases ViNe Sl - = - (252)
Exchange differences - (261) - - -
At 31st March 2014 and 2013 RZZ—NER
—E-—=F=AH
=T—H 30,289 9,000 - —
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33 Contingencies — Group and Company 33 RRAR — FRERELAF
(a) (a)

(b)

Group Company
£ 3 4L xNH
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=F ZB-NFE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Guarantees given to banks BB AR2RTEE
in respect of banking i AR AT Z 1R
facilities of subsidiaries - - 51,000 32,000
Guarantees given to banks ~ FKMBATZRITEE
in respect of banking T EERITEE 2 B R
facilities of subsidiaries- - EBA
utilised - — 17,000 9,000

On 13th April 2011, the Company received a
statement of claim, which was revised on 12th
October 2012, with no specified amount from a third
party in respect of a legal litigation against alleged
fraudulent conduct relating to the management of
an associated company which is under liquidation.
The directors of the Company, after taking advice
from the legal advisors which have considered the
information so far available, consider such claim is
rather flimsy, and the Company has a good chance
to defend its position. In this regard, the directors
of the Company do not anticipate any material
liabilities would arise from this litigation and there
would be no material impact to the financial
position nor consolidated financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31st March 2013 and 2014.

(b)

R=ZZ——FWMAB+=H ' ~QH
EEE=FRLEEESEZHRR
RE(R=—Z—=-F+A+=H
BIERT)  NE BB HBERPZ
BHENREEB 2 EBHRETAZ
SRR o AATEREREGEE
EER(EZEERMBEERRE)R
HeER%E RATEHRREREE
5 HANFREHERERHIS
RECBUMS  AARESAEF
BHLFASEBREMERES
HEHARRRAEEBE=-ZT—=
ER_E-—NFE=A=+—HIF
E 2 SRR AR & B A SRR A AR
EAFE-
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34 Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the

reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows:

Property, plant and equipment W2 - R R e

Film rights, films in progress and film Z&#E - BRH S

royalty deposits EXRERS

As at 31st March 2014, the Company did not have any

significant capital commitments.

35 Operating lease commitments

(@) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group leases certain offices and premises
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements.
The lease terms are between 1 to 20 years, and the
majority of lease agreements are renewable at the
end of the lease period at market rate. The future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Within 1 year 156K

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 1&£#&{B55RX
years

Later than 5 years 5F %

34 BEKIE
AREMREITHNEREEZERBEX
W

2014 2013
—2—MmF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREIT FBT

- 26,318

58,752 4,951
58,752 31,269

R-ZB-—NE=A=+—H A28%
BEMEREREE -

35 EEHPKIE

(a) BEWRHEARE — FREEHEHR
A
FEERBEFTHBESLHEOGR
HEZETHAZRYE - HENF
12205 BABHBENBEA
REERIZTIHKFER - RIET
AR SE RO 2 KRR ZEA

SHEREWT -
2014 2013
—E—@mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHT
5,396 5,646
22,569 32,529
86,663 107,216
114,628 145,391
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35 Operating lease commitments — Group
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee
(Continued)

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the
Group entered into operating lease arrangements
in respect of rental expenses amounting to
HK$10,492,000 (2013: HK$4,200,000) (note 7).

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties to
certain tenants under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between
2 to 4 years. The future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:

Within 1 year 15K
Later than 1 year and no later than 5

years

As at 31st March 2014, the Company did not have any

significant commitments under operating leases.

1FERBB5FR

e SRR MY R

35 EEHWARIE — xKE

(&

(a)

(b)

R=

EERVHER — *REESER
A(#&)
REBEZ-T-—NFE=Z=/A=+—
BLEE AEEREEHEX
10,492,0008 T (= & — =
4,200,000 T) 7l LR EHN L
BE(BIRET) ©

BEHEVRE — FEEESHA
A
AEEMRETTHBECEAORH
BEFHEFHBEEAREYE -
HNF2Z4F - REBETTHHEE
EHAWR 2z KR FEBSBED
T

2014 2013
—E—QmE —E2—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
6,061 3,285
5,873 392
11,934 3,677

T-mME=A=+—A AAFAL

BEMERNEEHOEAE -
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36 Business combinations

(a)

Acquisition of Getbetter Enterprise Limited and
its subsidiaries (“Getbetter Group”), and B&S
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“B&S Group”)

In September 2012, the Group acquired 100% of
the equity interest of Getbetter Group and B&S
Group from a third party at a net consideration
of HK$545,000. Getbetter Group and B&S Group
are principally engaged in the film rights licensing
business in Hong Kong. It contributed revenue
of approximately HK$4,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$283,000 to the Group for the

period from September 2012 to March 2013.

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for Getbetter Group and B&S Group, the fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at

the acquisition date.

36 RHGSH

(a)

It B Getbetter Enterprise
Limited® X M B 2 7
(Getbettersk E |) Bl B B&S
Group Limited % H [t B 4 7
(TB&S %M )

AZE——FNA AKEEOE
= 7 Uk B8 Getbetter & B & B&S
EBz100nRE REFEAR
545,000 Tt ° Getbetter& B &
BASEBETEREEBREER
BELEK - —2E—ZFAAZE
“E-ZF=ZAHERN ZAFH
REEE R 4,000 8 TR B A
283,000 & JTEEFEE ©

T R A2 5t Getbetter 5 & % B&S
SEXF2RE RWEBHZA
WEEERFIAREEBZANE -
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36 Business combinations (Continued) 36 X¥ESHw
(@) Acquisition of Getbetter Enterprise Limited and (a) ¥ F## Getbetter Enterprise
its subsidiaries (“Getbetter Group”), and B&S Limited® H [ B 2 7

Group Limited and its subsidiaries (“B&S Group”) ([ Getbetter &£ 1) Bl ®B&S

(Continued) Group Limited & X [} [ 2 B
(TB&S M) (&)
2013
—_E—=

HK$°000

FET

Purchase consideration in cash REeBENXE 8,000
Less: Amounts due to Getbetter Group and J8 - FE{S Getbetter 5B K& B&S &£ &

B&S Group ;I8 (7,455)

Net consideration KRERE 545

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets 2 T 52 1T ok U PRy Ui B o 2 B P Ak 12
acquired and liabilities assumed EfRZzE&®

Film rights B 1,977

Bank and cash balances IRITRIE SR 450

Deposits and other receivables ZE R HEMERTRIE 65

Other payables H {th B3 5R18 (1,947)

Total identifiable net assets AR EHEER 545

Goodwill RS —

Cash and bank balances acquired P iE IR € RIR1TAEGR 450

Cash consideration RERE (8,000)

Net cash outflow on acquisition KEzH&RHSHE (7,550)

Had Getbetter Group and B&S Group been
consolidated from 1st April 2012, the consolidated
income statement would show pro-forma revenue
of approximately HK$555,787,000 and loss of

approximately HK$49,359,000.

15 Getbetter & B & B&S & E H
—E-“HFEWNA-AREEA
R AlGRElaREBETREZR
#= #9555,787,0005% Tt & /& 18 &
49,359,000 T °
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36 Business combinations (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Tian Tian Zai Xian Services Limited

and its subsidiary (“Tian Tian Zai Xian”)

In April 2012, the Group acquired 90% of equity
interest of Tian Tian Zai Xian, which is principally
engaged in the video online business in the PRC,
from a third party at a cash consideration of
HK$990,000. As agreed, certain assets amounted
to HK$19,800,000 and all liabilities in the books of
Tian Tian Zai Xian as at the acquisition date were
assigned to the seller and the seller undertakes
to bear all risks and keep the Group fully and
effectively indemnified against any and all losses,
costs, damages, actions, proceedings, liabilities and

expenses arising from these assets and liabilities.

Tian Tian Zai Xian contributed revenue of
approximately HK$67,000 and net loss of
approximately HK$4,076,000 to the Group for the
period from April 2012 to March 2013.

The following table summarises the consideration
paid for Tian Tian Zai Xian, the fair value of assets
acquired and non-controlling interest at the

acquisition date.

36 (¥¥S6@=)

(b)

Iy B Tian Tian Zai Xian
Services Limited B ®E [} [ 2 7]
([ Tian Tian Zai Xian])

R-ZZ——FHWA AEE[HE
=7 W Tian Tian Zai Xian(ZE
ERFPERBERKIFER I
W) 20%kiE ReRER
990,000 JT ° 1R #& % & » Tian
Tian Zai XianFAUgHE A HABR B A
#19,800,000 B T2 E TEER
FEEBHIEETES BEHAHE
HREMERE  WHERERNEER
ZEEERBESIRZEARAE
BE R BERE-TH 2
F-EBERFEXESZARENE

&

R-ZB-——FHNAE=ZT—=F=
BHEIRA - Tian Tian Zai Xian %
AN E @A R4 67,00058 7T = K
#4,076,0008 T FEAE ©

T &RBEUF Tian Tian Zai Xianz
T2 R1E - RIEE B = Fr g &
ERFEREZ ZARE -
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36 Business combinations (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Tian Tian Zai Xian Services
Limited and its subsidiary (“Tian Tian Zai Xian”)
(Continued)

e SRR MY R

36 R¥uaH=
(b) Ut BETian Tian Zai Xian
Services Limited B & [} [ 2 7l
([ Tian Tian Zai Xian |) (&)

Purchase consideration in cash

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired

Property, plant and equipment

Computer software

Cash and bank

Intangible assets — licences

Total identifiable net assets

Non-controlling interest (10%)

Cash and bank balances acquired

Cash consideration

Net cash outflow on acquisition

Had Tian Tian Zai Xian been consolidated from
1st April 2012, the consolidated income statement
would show pro-forma revenue of approximately
HK$555,777,000 and loss of approximately

HK$49,076,000.

2013
—E—=

HK$°000

FET

HEeBENRE 990
EREZ RN EEEZ

&8

YIS~ BEE N RR1E 48

ES I 423

BERIBITEER 24

JELEE — MR 605

AR EEET 1,100

JEFEIRFERR (10%) (110)

990

FrukBBE € KR 17456 24

RERE (990)

KBzEeRHEE (966)

{#i Tian Tian Zai Xianl@ = =

——_FMNA-—BBHFEEAK
AlrelhazRBEERBEZ RS
#555,777,0008 T &k B 8 X
49,076,000 T °
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37 Related party transactions — Group 37 BREALTEZS — F5KH
Save as disclosed in other notes to the consolidated RAGEMBRREMMEMIRES
financial statements, significant related party o REBRBEEBRBREPETZE
transactions, which were carried out in the ordinary REBEALTRZUT :

course of the Group’s business, are as follows:

(a) Sales of services (a) SHERF
2014 2013
—2—MmF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET
Rental income received/receivable HESERBTHERAR
from rental of high-definition MU E, Rz S WA
equipment to an associate - 3,000
Rental income received/receivable HEPRQAEYETHE QA
from rental of office premises to an  MUREL FEWR 2L UL A
associate 734 734
Management fee income received/ W B, FE UK B A B
receivable from an associate ZEBBRA 245 245
979 SRS
Sales of services are transacted at normal HERKRERERRAERF
commercial terms that are consistently applied to 2 — R ERFEST

all customers.
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37 Related party transactions — Group
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Purchases of services

Post-production and origination
services paid/payable to an
associate

Playout services paid/payable to an
associate 2B AR TS

Other administrative costs paid/

payable to an associate

Purchases of services are transacted at normal
commercial terms that are consistently applied to

all suppliers.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are deemed to
be the members of the Board of Directors of
the Group who have the responsibility for the
planning, directing, controlling and the execution
of the activities of the Group. Key management
compensation is disclosed in note 12(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.

Year-end balances arising from sales/purchases

of services

e SRR MY R

37 FREALES — F5%KE

(&)

(b)

BN FHE QA
2 B BRER R AR

B BN FHE D

B/ BN THE R E
ZEABITBURA

(c)

(d)

Receivables from associates (note 18) FEURHELE N TFRIE (KL 18)

R R AR %5

2014 2013

—Z—QmF =F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRExT FET
8,945 7,565
3,774 2,775
131 243
12,850 10,583

BERZLEERERARFAEHE
2 — MR R IRFRETT o

TEEERARNS
FEEBAEETIRALREEES
B8 HEASSEHE  BR
ERRPTAEB2ER - TEE
BAEMESERE U B RRM T
12(a) P ©

Bt MEREELEZEXRER

2014 2013
—E—QmE —E—=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

7,064 12,397
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38 Dividends 38 BB
The directors do not recommend the payment of a EETEBRRKBEBZE_ZT—NF=A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2014 E+T-HEFEZRE(ZZE—=
(2013: nil). /) o

39 Group structure — principal subsidiaries 39 KERE — TERELT

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st THER=ZE—NE=A=+—HZ=
March 2014: ENBARRE

Percentage

Particulars of of effective

Place of issued share capital/ interest held

Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital by the Group

ER{TRE/ FREFHL

&l At FERE HMRFES ARRGESN

Shares held directly by the Company:

FATEERARR :
Mei Ah Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 50,050 ordinary shares of 100
US$1 each
ABELHE REER 50,050 RERAE
1En 2 EBR
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
FORRMERARS :
Era Movies Limited Hong Kong Sales and distribution of HK$100 ordinary shares 80
audio visual products
ERREERAT &8 HERBROYZER 10082 EBR
Fintage Asia Corporation British Virgin Islands ~ Securities investment 1 ordinary share of US$1 100
each
ABRLES BHRE 1REREE
1EXT2EBR

180



ANNUAL REPORT 2014 %3 e MEI AH ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED X iR &4 EHEEER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M Rk R

39 Group structure — principal subsidiaries 39 KERK — TEMBEAR

(Continued) (#&)
Percentage
Particulars of of effective
Place of issued share capital/ interest held
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital by the Group
ER{TRE/ F&ERAZ
an SR T R FERE EMEFHE AUEREAL
Shares held indirectly by the Company:
(Continued)
FLREMERERN : (8)
G major Limited Hong Kong Artiste management HK$10,000 ordinary shares 55
&k BA\ER 10,0008 2 EBR
MATV Limited Hong Kong Television operations HK$4 ordinary shares 100
FRERERAT B EREHR 4ETZEBR
MATV (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Television operations HK$20,000 ordinary shares 100
(EH)ERAR Bk EREHR 20,000 BT 2 EEMR
Mei Ah (HK) Company Limited Hong Kong Sales and distribution HK$10,000 ordinary shares 100

of audio visual
products and television
operations
Z5(BB)ERAR B HERBAYEERR 10,000 BT 2 EER
EREH
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39 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name

4

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
(Continued)
FLREMERERN : (8)

Mei Ah Development Company Limited

Mei Ah Film Production Company Limited

ZLEYRFERAT

Mei Ah Online (HK) Company Limited

XOHEE(BR)ARLA

Mei Ah Investment Company Limited

XONERERRLT

182

Place of

incorporation

A 2 0

British Virgin Islands

ABELEHS

Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

Principal activities

IRRE

Licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights

RERBREZME

Production, licensing and
distribution of films and

tele-features

RF RERBTEER
E

Video online investment

FRRBARURE

Property investment

NxRE

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERfTRE/
EREXER

50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
50,000 RERAE
EnZERER

HK$2 ordinary shares

2B EBR

HK$100 ordinary shares
1002 BER

HK$2 ordinary shares
2B ERER

HK$500,000 non-voting
deferred shares

500,000 8T EREE
EER

39 KERKIK — TERELF
(#)

Percentage

of effective
interest held
by the Group
FRERHZ
ARRGESN

100

100

90

100
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(Continued)

Name

4

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
(Continued)
FLREMERERN : (8)

Mei Ah Trading Company Limited

BREEAERRERAT (note (c) (#iE(c)

ZEREFRL(LR)BRAF (note (d))

(Wit ()

ZORAFRER (LK) BRAF (note (0)

(Wit ()

ETH(X2)ERAF (note (o) (A ()

39 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

Place of

incorporation

A 2 0

British Virgin Islands

ABELEHS

PRC

El

PRC

e

PRC

E

PRC
E

Principal activities

IRRE

Licensing and sub-
licensing of film rights

RERBREZME

Property investment

ES

Investment of films and
telefeatures, and artiste
management
EYRERTHRER
BAER

Theatre investment

EFRRE

Theatre operations

EYREK

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERfTRE/
EREXER

50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
50,000 RERAE
EnZERER

RMB16,000,000
AR 16,000,000 70

RMB10,000,000

AR 10,000,000 7t

RMB20,000,000

AR 20,000,000

RMB3,000,000
AR#3,000,0007

39 KERKIK — TERELF
(#)

Percentage

of effective
interest held
by the Group
FRERHZ
ARRGESN

100

70

100

100

100
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39 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

(Continued)

Name

an

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
(Continued)

FAFRERERR (@)

FERGERROEARLT

FRRR (33

R)REBRAF (note (d)) (A& ()

EERER(L8)BRAF (note () (M ()

Place of

incorporation

A 2 0

Taiwan

PRC
E

PRC
E

Principal activities

IRRE

Production, licensing and
distribution of films and
television operations

2 RERBITEY
RERZEH

Video online investment

FRRABEURE

Theatre operations

EYREK

Particulars of

issued share capital/
registered capital
ERfTRE/
EREXER

2,000,000 ordinary shares
of NTD10 each

2,000,000 REREE
105 A%z EBR

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

RMB6,000,000
AR#6,000,0007

39 KERKIK — TERELF
(#)

Percentage

of effective
interest held
by the Group
FRERHZ
ARRGESN

85

90

100
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39 Group structure — principal subsidiaries

(Continued)
Note:

(@) Other than MATV (Asia) Limited, Mei Ah Trading
Company Limited and Mei Ah Development Company
Limited which operate in Hong Kong and overseas; &
XS E#BEARAR, EDREFE (IR ER
AR, ERNRBFREEMER)ERAR, EEHH(X
B)ERAR, ERNRER(LE)ERAR and EZX
X (At m)BHEAR 2D F which operate in the PRC; =
DR R RH AR AT which operates in Taiwan; all
subsidiaries principally operate in Hong Kong.

(o) All subsidiaries listed above are limited liability
companies.

(c) Being sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises
established under the PRC laws.

(d) Being wholly foreign owned enterprises established
under the PRC laws.

e SRR MY R

39 KEER — ETEMELF

(&)
Bt -

@

BREDTERGEMN) BRAF - Mei
Ah Trading Company Limited &
Mei Ah Development Company
Limited A & B RIg/IHNEE | B
EDEBEBNBFERAF - ZDRE
EHRXAR)BRAR  ZER
HERERGLR)BRAR - XD
EW(RZ)ERAT » LR
FR(LEB)BRARREZ R KL
F)RMEERATDRPELE LR
EDRVBEROGBERAANEG E
ReE) MEMNBAREERESE

o o
LIFEHEARAERAT -
BRETEEERIZBNAED
%Q

RBBHEEER L 2 IERED
%0
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A FPBHRE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years are as follows:

Results x5

(Loss)/profit attributable to Z~A B #EH A Bl
owners of the Company (B18) /FE

Assets and liabilities BEHAR
Total assets HWEE
Total liabilities wafsE
Total equity BrER

BENT :

Year ended 31st March
BE=HA=1T—HLEE

AEERBELEVBREEZRE  EER

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—F-WFE —F-=F —F--F —F——F —FT-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
(23,896) (48,735) (11,413) 55,000 51,965

As at 31st March

®R=A=+—H

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—ENE —E-=F 2 —E2——F —E2-FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FET FET FET FET
709,108 711,073 808,891 675,666 543,073
(151,844) (135,570) (193,614) (77,924) (127,953)
557,264 575,503 615,277 597,742 415,120
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ETEREWMEM R

Percentage
of Group’s
interests
Address Type Lease term xEEZ
kit X35 H¥MER B3RS
Shop 2 on Ground Floor Commercial Medium 100%
Po Sun Mansion [EES FRHER
No. 89 Bulkeley Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon
FUBEAL T
BEHAHE 895
BERRE
#h T 2 SR AR
Portion of Mei Ah Centre of Section 1 of Industrial Medium 100%
Tseung Kwan O Town Lot No. 39 and I% FRHA
The Extension Thereto
Tseung Kwan O, Kowloon
NERER
AR T i B 39 5 &%
HIRHEER (D 1 BR
EnEEH LB
Workshop No. 5, Nos. 15-23 and 25-28 Industrial Medium 100%
on 17th Floor Metro Centre I HR R
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
SRR
B BT 32 9%
EEPOLITIE
53% ~ 15-23 97 % 25-28 57 T35
Workshop Nos. 1-2 Industrial Medium 100%
on 10th Floor Metro Centre I HHR
No. 32 Lam Hing Street
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
hENEE
i B 447 32 5%
EEPL104E
1-258 T35
Factory Unit Nos. 23 and 24 on 5th Floor and Industrial Medium 100%

Car Parking Space No. V18 on Basement I Fh A
Kowloon Bay Industrial Centre
No. 15 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NEENEESE
REE 155

5235 R 245 TMEE(
KB VI8 SEE
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TEREVEMR

Address Type

Mok |

House No. 28 and Car Park Nos. 59 and 60 Residential
The Villa Horizon 1*=

No. 8 Silver Stream Path, Silverstrand
Sai Kung, New Territories
HARAAR
IRAREIR RIC 8K
BRE28FRE
X 5955 K% 60 SRE L

Units 801-814 on Level 8 of West Tower Yangcheng Commercial
International Commercial Center [EES
Tiyu East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China
P ARLAE
BN
KU e B R
FIHEREE O
A 812801-814 E

Units 2101-2106 on 21/F of Block 3 Commercial
Zone A1 of Qi Dong District [EES
Guan Yin Shan Guo Ji Sheng Wu Ying Yun Zhong Xin
Si Ming District
Xiamen
The People’s Republic of China

FEARLNER
EF
BHHE
BZLBEEEBEEDL
RREE A1 iR
35512218 2101-2106 E T

Flat 1 on Level 3 Residential
No. 2 Hua Xiao Street 1x=
Tianhe Ming Ya Court
Tianhe East Road, Tianhe District
Guangzhou
The People’s Republic of China

REARAENE
=P
O & RO R B
PLIEZY 27
ERA2RIBIE

Percentage

of Group’s

interests

Lease term FTEEZ

HHEHY B2aok

Medium 100%
AR

Medium 100%
FRER

Medium 70%
FRER

Medium 100%
FRER
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